
 

-1- 
 

 
 

To Provide a Sustainable Quality of Life 
Through Excellent Stewardship of Government 

UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
P. O. Box 610 ▪ Unalaska, Alaska 99685 

Tel (907) 581-1251 ▪ Fax (907) 581-1417 ▪ www.ci.unalaska.ak.us 

Mayor: Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. City Manager: William Homka 
City Clerk: Estkarlen P. Magdaong, emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us 

 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE 
The community is encouraged to attend meetings of the City Council: 

• In person at City Hall 

• Online via ZOOM (link, meeting ID & password below) 

• By telephone (toll and toll-free numbers, meeting ID & password below) 

• Listen on KUCB TV Channel 8 or Radio Station 89.7 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Mayor and City Council value and encourage community input at meetings of the City Council. There is a time 
limit of 3 minutes per person, per topic. Options for public comment: 

• In person 

• By telephone or ZOOM - notify the City Clerk if you’d like to provide comment using ZOOM features (chat 
message or raise your hand); or *9 by telephone to raise your hand; or you may notify the City Clerk during 
regular business hours in advance of the meeting 

• Written comment is accepted up to one hour before the meeting begins by email, regular mail, fax or hand 
delivery to the City Clerk, and will be read during the meeting; include your name 

ZOOM MEETING LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84177601835?pwd=2eqki3qBJCyaGkTWK2C3cxink5TpN1.1 
Meeting ID: 841 7760 1835 / Passcode: 721576 

 
TELEPHONE: Meeting ID: 841 7760 1835 / Passcode: 721576 
Toll Free numbers: (833) 548-0276; or (833) 548-0282; or (877) 853-5247; or (888) 788-0099 
Non Toll-Free numbers: (253) 215-8782; or (346) 248-7799; or (669) 900-9128 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to order 

2. Roll call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Recognition of Visitors 

5. Awards and Presentations 

a. Recognize City Employment Anniversary of Ruth Marquez, Department of Public Safety, 25 
years 

6. Adoption of Agenda 

Unalaska City Hall 
Council Chambers 

43 Raven Way 
 
 
 

Council Members 
Anthony Longo 

Alejandro R. Tungul 
Shari Coleman 

 

 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, January 14, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
Council Members 
Thomas D. Bell 
Darin Nicholson 
Daneen Looby 

Council Packet Page Number 1 

http://www.ci.unalaska.ak.us/
mailto:emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84177601835?pwd=2eqki3qBJCyaGkTWK2C3cxink5TpN1.1


 

-2- 
 

7. Approve Minutes of Previous Meetings – November 26, 2024 and January 3, 2025 

8. City Manager Report  

9. Community Input & Announcements Members of the public may provide information to council or 

make announcements of interest to the community. Three-minute time limit per person. 

10. Public Comment on Agenda Items Time for members of the public to provide information to Council 

regarding items on the agenda. Alternatively, members of the public may speak when the issue comes up on 

the regular agenda by signing up with the City Clerk. Three-minute time limit per person. 

11. Public Hearing Members of the public may testify about any item set for public hearing. Three-minute time 

limit per person. 

a. Ordinance 2024-16: Amending UCO § 3.40.040 to adopt a new pay range matrix to apply a 
cost of living increase 

b. Ordinance 2024-17: Amending UCO 9.20.025(B) to allow food and non-alcoholic beverage 
service at licensed premises Monday through Sunday from 5:30 a.m. until such hour as the 
licensed premises is authorized to dispense alcoholic beverages 

c. Ordinance 2025-01: Budget Amendment #1 Creating Budget Amendment #1 to the Fiscal 
Year 2025 budget, appropriating $270,726 from Crab Disaster Relief Funds and 
$207,125.03 from the Dinh settlement to create the Developing Recycling Infrastructure and 
Vehicle End-of-life (DRIVE) Project; Recognizing local support revenue of $13,090.59 in the 
General Fund and increasing the PCR operating budget for the Senior Exercise Program; 
Increasing the Electric Administration Operating Budget by $116,000 for the EPS Consulting 
Services Agreement; Increasing the Electric Fund Operating Budget for a transfer to Capital 
Projects for an increase to the generator sets rebuild project by $350,000; and Increasing 
the budget for the utility funds for a rate study of $172,000 

12. Work Session Work sessions are for planning purposes or studying and discussing issues before the 

Council. 

a. FY25 Financial Reports  

13. Consent Agenda 

a. Resolution 2025-02: Adopting an alternative allocation method for the FY2025 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program and certifying that this allocation method fairly represents 
the distribution of significant effects of fisheries business activity in the FMA 2: Aleutians 
Islands Area 

b. Resolution 2025-03: Establishing dates for FY26 Real Property and Business Personal 
Property tax collection effort 

c. Resolution 2025-04:  Adopting Priority Rankings for the FY26 - FY35 Capital and Major 
Maintenance Plan Process Guide  

d. Resolution 2025-05:  Supporting the City's acceptance of the U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security 2024 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) Award 

14. Regular Agenda Persons wishing to speak on regular agenda items must sign up with the City Clerk. 

Three-minute time limit per person. 

a. Resolution 2025-06: Establishing taxicab rates for the calendar year 2025  

b. Ordinance 2024-15: (2nd Reading) Amending Title 14 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances 
regulating the use of off-road or all-purpose vehicles within City limits 

c. Ordinance 2024-16: (2nd Reading) Amending UCO § 3.40.040 to adopt a new pay range 
matrix to apply a cost of living increase 

Council Packet Page Number 2 



 

-3- 
 

d. Ordinance 2024-17: (2nd Reading) Amending UCO 9.20.025(B) to allow food and non-
alcoholic beverage service at licensed premises Monday through Sunday from 5:30 a.m. 
until such hour as the licensed premises is authorized to dispense alcoholic beverages 

e. Ordinance 2025-01: (2nd reading) FY25 Budget Amendment #1 Creating Budget 
Amendment #1 to the Fiscal Year 2025 budget, appropriating $270,726 from Crab Disaster 
Relief Funds and $207,125.03 from the Dinh settlement to create the Developing Recycling 
Infrastructure and Vehicle End-of-life (DRIVE) Project; Recognizing local support revenue of 
$13,090.59 in the General Fund and increasing the PCR operating budget for the Senior 
Exercise Program; Increasing the Electric Administration Operating Budget by $116,000 for 
the EPS Consulting Services Agreement; Increasing the Electric Fund Operating Budget for 
a transfer to Capital Projects for an increase to the generator sets rebuild project by 
$350,000; and Increasing the budget for the utility funds for a rate study of $172,000 

f. Travel Approval 

i. NPFMC Meetings 

ii. AML Winter Legislative Conference  

iii. SWAMC Conference  

15. Council Directives to City Manager 

16. Community Input & Announcements Members of the public may provide information to council or 

make announcements of interest to the community. Three-minute time limit per person. 

17. Adjournment 

Council Packet Page Number 3 



 

-1- 
 

 
 

UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
P. O. Box 610 ▪ Unalaska, Alaska 99685 

Tel (907) 581-1251 ▪ Fax (907) 581-1417 ▪ www.ci.unalaska.ak.us 

Mayor: Vincent M. Tutiakoff Sr. City Manager: William Homka 
City Clerk: Estkarlen Magdaong, emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us 

 

MINUTES 

1. Call to order. The Mayor called the regular meeting of the Unalaska City Council to order on 
November 26, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

2. Roll call. The acting City Clerk called the roll. The Mayor and Council Members Bell, Coleman, 
Longo, and Looby were present, while Tungul participated remotely. Council Member Nicholson 
was absent.  

Bell read the Mission Statement: To provide a sustainable quality of life through excellent 
stewardship of government. 

3. Pledge of Allegiance. The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

4. Recognition of Visitors. No particular recognition was made. 

5. Awards and Presentations 

a. The Mayor presented John Russell Laforteza with the Community Extra Mile Award. 

b. The Mayor presented Shelly Blakeley with the Community Extra Mile Award. 

6. Adoption of Agenda. Coleman moved to adopt the agenda with a second by Bell. There being no 
objection, the agenda was adopted by consensus. 

7. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting. Longo moved to approve the proposed minutes of the 
council meeting held October 22, 2024, as presented, with a second by Looby. There being no 
objection, the minutes were approved by consensus.  

8. Reports. 

a. City Manager Report – City Manager Homka provided an overview of the Manager 
Report and answered questions from Council. 

b. Board and Commission Minutes (no presentation) 

i. PCR Advisory Committee Meeting minutes from September 9, 2024 was 
included in the packet for Council’s information.  

 

 

Unalaska City Hall 
Council Chambers 

43 Raven Way 
 

Council Members 
Anthony Longo 

Alejandro R. Tungul 
Shari Coleman 

 

 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, November, 26, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 
 

Council Members 
Thomas D. Bell 
Darin Nicholson 
Daneen Looby 

Council Packet Page Number 4 

http://www.ci.unalaska.ak.us/
mailto:emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us


 

-2- 
 

9. Community Input & Announcements.  

a. M. Lynn Crane made announcements on behalf of the Museum of the Aleutians.  

b. M. Lynn Crane made announcements on behalf of the IFHS Board. 

c. M. Lynn Crane made announcements on behalf of Unalaskans Against Sexual Assault & 
Family Violence. 

d. PCR Recreation Manager Albert Burnham made announcements on behalf of the 
Department of Parks, Culture & Recreation. 

10. Public Comment on Agenda Items. None. 

11. Public Hearing. The Mayor opened the Public Hearing on Ordinance 2024-15 Amending Title 14 of 
the Unalaska Code of Ordinances regulating the use of off-road or all-purpose vehicles within City 
limits 

a. Laresa Syverson with Ounalashka Corporation provided comments and concerns 
regarding Ordinance 2024-15. 

12. Consent Agenda. Coleman moved to adopt the Consent Agenda; second by Longo. Roll call vote: 
Motion passed unanimously 5-0 adopting the following items: 

a. Resolution 2024-49: Supporting full funding ($5,740,408) for the State of Alaska 
Municipal Harbor Facility Grant Program in the Fiscal Year 2026 State Capital Budget 

b. Resolution 2024-50: In support of raising the maximum available for the Alaska 
Department of Transportation Harbor Facility Grant to $7,500,000 for eligible projects on 
an annual basis 

13. Regular Agenda.  

a. Ordinance 2024-15: (2nd Reading) Amending Title 14 of the Unalaska Code of 
Ordinances regulating the use of off-road or all-purpose vehicles within City limits 

Bell moved to adopt Ordinance 2024-15; second by Longo. 

Acting City Manager Bill Homka provided an overview.  

Mr. Severin answered Council questions and provided information. 

Looby moved to amend Ordinance 2024-15 Section 4 UCO 14.04.025 Fine 
Schedule to include a $1,000 fine for violation of 14.08.020B Unlawful operation of 
APV driving on sidewalk or nonmotorized trail, with a second by Coleman. 

Roll call vote on Amendment: Longo – yes; Tungul – Yes; Coleman – 
Yes; Looby – Yes; Bell – No. 

Motion passed with 4 yes and 1 no. 

Denise Rankin, Dennis Robinson, and Travis Swangel provided comments on 
Ordinance 2024-15. 

Council discussion. 

Bell moved to suspend vote on Ordinance 2024-15 to January 14, 2025 meeting; 
second by Longo. 

 

Council Packet Page Number 5 



 

-3- 
 

Roll call vote: All council members present voted in in the affirmative. 

With this vote, the Council has approved the suspension of Ordinance 
2024-15 until January 14, 2025. 

 

Council took a short break from 7:08 p.m. to 7:14 p.m. 

 

b. Ordinance 2024-16: (1st Reading) Amending UCO § 3.40.040 to adopt a new pay range 
matrix to apply a cost of living increase 

Coleman moved to introduce Ordinance 2024-16 and schedule it for public 
hearing and with a second reading on January 14, 2025; second by Bell. 

City Manager Bill Homka provided an overview.  

Council discussion. 

Roll call vote on Ordinance 2024-16: Looby – yes; Bell – Yes; Longo – yes; 
Tungul – yes; Coleman – yes. 

With this vote, the Council has introduced Ordinance 2024-16 and scheduled it 
for public hearing and second reading on January 14, 2025. 

c. Ordinance 2024-17: (1st Reading) Amending UCO 9.20.025(B) to allow food and non-
alcoholic beverage service at licensed premises Monday through Sunday from 5:30 a.m. 
until such hour as the licensed premises is authorized to dispense alcoholic beverages 

Coleman moved to introduce Ordinance 2024-17and schedule it for public 
hearing and with a second reading on January 14, 2025; second by Bell. 

Looby recused herself from discussion and voting on Ordinance 2024-17. 

City Manager Bill Homka provided an overview. 

Council discussion. 

Daneen Looby, as a member of the public, provided public comment on 
Ordinance 2024-17. 

Roll call vote on the amendment: Coleman – yes; Bell – yes; Tungul – yes; 
Longo – yes.  

With this vote, the Council has introduced Ordinance 2024-17 and scheduled it 
for public hearing and second reading on January 14, 2025. 

d. Resolution 2024-51: Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a sole-source 
Professional Services Agreement with LONG Building Technologies, Inc. for the City’s 
Building Automation Service Agreement 

Longo moved to adopt Resolution 2024-51; second by Coleman. 

City Manager Bill Homka provided an overview. 

Council discussion. 

Council Packet Page Number 6 



 

-4- 
 

Roll call vote: Looby – yes; Coleman – yes; Longo – yes; Tungul – yes; Bell – 
yes. 

Resolution 2024-51 passed 5-0. 

e. Resolution 2024-52: Authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and sign a Memorandum 
of Understanding with Matson Shipping for engineering services for crane infrastructure 
at the Unalaska Marine Center 

Coleman moved to adopt Resolution 2024-52; with a second by Bell. 

City Manager Homka provided an overview. 

Council Discussion. 

Ports Director Peggy Mclaughlin answered Council questions and provided 
information.  

Bell moved to amend Resolution 2024-52 by removing “and sign”; Second by 
Looby. 

Council discussion. 

Roll call vote to amend Resolution 2024-52: Longo – yes; Coleman – yes; Bell – 
yes; Tungul – No; Looby – Yes. 

With 4 yes and 1 no, the amendment to Resolution 2024-52 passed. 

Roll call vote on Resolution 2024-52 as amended: Bell – yes; Tungul – yes; 
Looby – yes; Longo – yes; Coleman – yes. 

Resolution 2024-52 is adopted as amended with a 5-0 vote.    

14. Council Directives to City Manager. None 

15. Community Input & Announcements.  

a. Matt Scott made announcements for Optimera and Bering Sea Office Supply.  

b. Councilman Looby made announcement regarding the Unalaska High School Volleyball 
team.  

c. Denise Rankin wished Laresa Syverson a happy birthday.  

16. Adjournment. Having completed all items on the agenda, Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:08 
p.m. 

 

These minutes were approved by the Unalaska City Council on January 14, 2025. 

 

__________________________  
Alicia Aguilar 
Acting City Clerk 

 

Council Packet Page Number 7 



 

-1- 
 

 
 

UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
P. O. Box 610 ▪ Unalaska, Alaska 99685 

Tel (907) 581-1251 ▪ Fax (907) 581-1417 ▪ www.ci.unalaska.ak.us 

Mayor: Vincent M. Tutiakoff Sr. City Manager: William Homka 
City Clerk: Estkarlen Magdaong, emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us 

 

MINUTES 

1. Call to order. The Mayor called the special meeting of the Unalaska City Council to order on 
January 3, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. 

Coleman read the City’s Mission Statement: To provide a sustainable quality of life through 
excellent stewardship of government. 

2. Roll call. The acting City Clerk called the roll. The Mayor and Council Members Bell, Looby, and 
Coleman were present in person and Longo participated remotely. Council Members Tungul and 
Nicholson were absent.  

3. Pledge of Allegiance. The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

4. Recognition of Visitors. No particular recognition was made.  

5. Adoption of Agenda. Looby moved to adopt the agenda with second by Bell.  

6. Reports. 

a. City Manager Report – City Manager Bil Homka offered to defer presenting the City 
Manager Report till the end of this meeting to facilitate time constraints. 

7. Community Input & Announcements. None 

8. Public Comment on Agenda Items. None 

9. Regular Agenda.  

a. Resolution 2025-01: Authorizing an agreement between the City of Unalaska and City of Saint 
Paul for collecting and remitting taxes on North Region Bering Sea Snow Crab harvested in 
2025 

Clerk’s Note: Initially, the Mayor incorrectly numbered this Resolution as 2024-53 
due to outdated documentation provided to him for this meeting.  

Looby moved to adopt Resolution 2025-01 second by Bell.  

City Manager Homka introduced the resolution and responded to Council 
questions.  

Unalaska City Hall 
Council Chambers 

43 Raven Way 
 

Council Members 
Anthony Longo 

Alejandro R. Tungul 
Shari Coleman 

 

 

Special Meeting 
Friday, January 3, 2025 
12:00 p.m. 
 

Council Members 
Thomas D. Bell 
Darin Nicholson 
Daneen Looby 

Council Packet Page Number 8 

http://www.ci.unalaska.ak.us/
mailto:emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us


 

-2- 
 

Roll call vote: All Council Members present voted in the affirmative adopting 
Resolution 2025-01. 

a. Ordinance 2025-01: (1st Reading) Creating Budget Amendment #1 to the Fiscal Year 
2025 budget, appropriating $270,726 from Crab Disaster Relief Funds and $207,125.03 
from the Dinh settlement to create the Developing Recycling Infrastructure and Vehicle 
End-of-life (DRIVE) Project; Recognizing local support revenue of $13,090.59 in the 
General Fund and increasing the PCR operating budget for the Senior Exercise 
Program; Increasing the Electric Administration Operating Budget by $116,000 for the 
EPS Consulting Services Agreement; Increasing the Electric Fund Operating Budget for 
a transfer to Capital Projects for an increase to the generator sets rebuild project by 
$350,000; and Increasing the budget for the utility funds for a rate study of $172,000 

Bell moved to introduce Ordinance 2025-01 and schedule it for public hearing 
and second reading on January 14, 2025; second by Looby. 

City Manager Homka introduced the ordinance. 

Council discussion. 

Roll call vote: All Council Members present voted in the affirmative, scheduling 
Ordinance 2025-01 for public hearing and second reading on January 14, 2025. 

10. Council Directives to City Manager: None 

Mayor confirmed there are no questions regarding City Manager’s report when asked by 

City Manager 

11. Community Input & Announcements: 

a. The Mayor thanked the Fire Department and Police Department for the great fireworks 
display despite the weather and wished a Happy New Year to everyone.  

12. Adjournment. Having completed all items on the agenda, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 
12:28 p.m. 

 

 
 
These minutes were approved by the Unalaska City Council on January 14, 2025 
 
 

__________________________  
Alicia Aguilar 
Acting City Clerk 

 

Council Packet Page Number 9 



1 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
TO: Mayor Tutiakoff and City Council Members 
FROM: William Homka, City Manager 
DATE: January 14, 2025 
 

1. USCG FOLLOW UP – GENIUS STAR: Several staff and I participated in follow up meetings with the 
Coast Guard to discuss the Genius Star XI emergency that happened a year ago. The meetings were 
at the Grand Aleutian on Tuesday January 7 – Wednesday January 8 and included ICS 400 level 
training. 

2. UCSD: I received an email from Superintendent Hannish inviting participation for the school system’s 
FY26 Budget development. She is looking for a person from the City Management team and/or City 
Council member to be part of the committee. Last year Councilwoman Looby and Planning Director 
Dean were on the committee.  

3. FY23 Audit: Joy Merriner of BDO will present the audit at the City Council meeting on January 28, 
2025.  

4. Finance Director: Jim Sharpe of Esplin & Associates LLC will return to Unalaska as the Interim Finance 
Director. Jim served as finance director for more than two years. Jim will be on island the week of 
January 20, 2025. 

5. Controller Candidate: We are bringing a candidate for financial controller to the island the week of 
January 20, 2025. I will send you more information next week.  

6. FY26 Budget: Staff are beginning to work on next year’s operating budget.  

7. Abandoned Cars: Staff at public works have begun towing some of the vehicles identified as 
abandoned for which the titles have been transferred to the city. Vehicle maintenance will begin 
preparing the cars as time allows and will subsequently be towed to the landfill. So far 113 vehicles 
have been identified and are the first round we will begin processing.  

8. Employee & Classification Studies: Staff and administration are working with McGrath Human 
Resources Consultants on a classification and compensation study for employees represented by the 
International Union of Operating Engineers 302 (three bargaining units) and Inland Boatmen’s Union 
of the Pacific Alaska Region (IBU). 

9. Special Olympics: The Unalaska Police department is making plans to participate in the special 
Olympics law enforcement torch run. This is a campaign to benefit the special Olympics and is the 
largest grass roots fundraising movement to benefit the special Olympics. Details and dates will be 
announced later.  

10. St. Paul: Staff, fisheries consultant and our city attorney are working together to implement the details 
of the St. Paul fisheries taxes agreement.  

Council Packet Page Number 10 



2 
 

BEFORE 

AFTER 

11. Nuisance Abatement: The owner of 452 Bayview Avenue, the smaller of the two derelict buildings 
discussed during the work session on February 27, 2024, has completed demolition. As discussed at 
that work session, the property is a restricted deed and as such the City is unable to pursue it's normal 
nuisance abatement process. Following the meeting, the City offered to waive landfill fees for wood 
disposed from the property, which can constitute a large share of total demolition costs. The owner 
hired a contractor, received a demolition permit and as of December 30, 2024 removed the nuisance 
structure.  

The owner of the smaller building, 452 Bayview Avenue, received a demolition permit, demolished 
the building and disposed of the waste as of 12/30/24. The City waived landfill fees for disposing of 
the wood from the building. 

 

 

Council Packet Page Number 11 



CITY OF UNALASKA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/07/2025 17:00
User:             ktompkins
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 05

                                           ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                            APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

0100 General Fund                         

000 Undefined                           -38,622,491 -38,622,491 -30,921,361.31  -2,751,268.78            .00  -7,701,129.69   80.1%
001 Council                                 556,879     556,879      87,878.63      13,630.15     150,998.98     318,001.39   42.9%
002 City Manager's Office                   769,111     769,111     270,481.76      59,959.67      70,614.04     428,015.20   44.3%
003 Administration                        2,269,332   2,269,332   1,076,103.18      81,342.71      42,740.05   1,150,488.77   49.3%
005 Clerks                                  699,496     699,496     294,271.78      50,935.97       5,249.24     399,974.98   42.8%
006 Finance                               1,381,341   1,381,341     482,772.17     144,268.00     118,407.04     780,161.79   43.5%
007 Information Systems                   1,454,736   1,454,736     684,291.69     110,450.63     231,478.79     538,965.12   63.0%
008 Planning                                852,150     852,150     247,473.83      48,033.24       4,655.78     600,020.39   29.6%
011 Police and Admin                      4,360,305   4,360,305   1,257,688.51     260,264.47     205,834.01   2,896,782.48   33.6%
012 Police Communications                   984,898     984,898     345,352.42      69,933.14       8,997.55     630,548.03   36.0%
014 Police Corrections                    1,198,175   1,198,175     426,864.44      91,684.46      29,996.87     741,313.69   38.1%
015 Fire and Emergency Services           2,544,544   2,544,544     765,037.71     159,198.51      13,807.36   1,765,698.93   30.6%
020 DPW Admin & Engineering                 981,251     981,251     317,395.19      62,086.07       7,315.34     656,540.47   33.1%
022 Streets and Roads                     2,822,558   2,822,558   1,717,882.93     988,950.43    -308,220.75   1,412,895.82   49.9%
023 Receiving and Supply                    379,372     379,372     170,678.77      32,489.03       4,347.05     204,346.18   46.1%
028 Veh & Equip Maintenance               1,322,577   1,322,577     508,946.57     106,083.74      22,155.11     791,475.32   40.2%
029 Facilities Maintenance                1,766,327   1,766,327     612,448.88     138,751.80      84,424.27   1,069,453.89   39.5%
031 PCR Administration                      291,890     291,890     122,050.92      21,947.18       5,636.14     164,202.94   43.7%
032 Recreation Programs                   1,015,885   1,015,885     384,996.22      82,314.55       4,629.71     626,259.07   38.4%
033 Community Center Operations           1,252,469   1,252,469     522,772.79     119,136.63      50,077.13     679,619.08   45.7%
034 Library                               1,119,375   1,119,375     432,864.20      85,068.81     176,775.91     509,734.39   54.5%
035 Aquatics Center                         699,018     699,018     279,408.12      63,937.78      11,621.22     407,988.66   41.6%
036 Parks                                    50,100      50,100       2,465.88         366.71            .00      47,634.12    4.9%
091 Grants to Non-Profits                 1,219,705   1,219,705     508,210.30     101,642.06     711,494.70            .00  100.0%
092 Education                             5,996,810   5,996,810   2,498,670.80     499,734.16   3,498,139.20            .00  100.0%
099 Transfers Out                           600,000     600,000     600,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL General Fund                  -2,034,188  -2,034,188 -16,304,353.62     640,941.12   5,151,174.74   9,118,991.02  548.3%

                        TOTAL REVENUES  -38,622,491 -38,622,491 -30,921,361.31  -2,751,268.78            .00  -7,701,129.69
                        TOTAL EXPENSES   36,588,303  36,588,303  14,617,007.69   3,392,209.90   5,151,174.74  16,820,120.71

1100 1% Sales Tax                         

000 Undefined                            -4,890,000  -4,890,000  -2,574,845.62    -734,253.42            .00  -2,315,154.38   52.7%
099 Transfers Out                         2,507,262   2,507,262   2,507,262.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL 1% Sales Tax                  -2,382,738  -2,382,738     -67,583.62    -734,253.42            .00  -2,315,154.38    2.8%

                        TOTAL REVENUES   -4,890,000  -4,890,000  -2,574,845.62    -734,253.42            .00  -2,315,154.38
                        TOTAL EXPENSES    2,507,262   2,507,262   2,507,262.00            .00            .00            .00

Council Packet Page Number 12 



CITY OF UNALASKA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/07/2025 17:00
User:             ktompkins
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 05

                                           ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
1200     Bed Tax                            APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

1200 Bed Tax                              

000 Undefined                              -175,000    -175,000     -69,479.76     -14,057.90            .00    -105,520.24   39.7%

     TOTAL Bed Tax                         -175,000    -175,000     -69,479.76     -14,057.90            .00    -105,520.24   39.7%

                        TOTAL REVENUES     -175,000    -175,000     -69,479.76     -14,057.90            .00    -105,520.24

1400 E911 Enhancement                     

000 Undefined                               -75,000     -75,000     -33,148.00      -5,938.00            .00     -41,852.00   44.2%
010 Public Safety Admin                      22,850      22,850         875.00         175.00       1,525.00      20,450.00   10.5%

     TOTAL E911 Enhancement                 -52,150     -52,150     -32,273.00      -5,763.00       1,525.00     -21,402.00   59.0%

                        TOTAL REVENUES      -75,000     -75,000     -33,148.00      -5,938.00            .00     -41,852.00
                        TOTAL EXPENSES       22,850      22,850         875.00         175.00       1,525.00      20,450.00

1500 Tobacco Tax                          

000 Undefined                            -1,177,441  -1,177,441    -300,131.29            .00            .00    -877,309.71   25.5%
091 Grants to Non-Profits                 1,177,441   1,177,441     490,600.40      98,120.08     686,840.60            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL Tobacco Tax                            0           0     190,469.11      98,120.08     686,840.60    -877,309.71  100.0%

                        TOTAL REVENUES   -1,177,441  -1,177,441    -300,131.29            .00            .00    -877,309.71
                        TOTAL EXPENSES    1,177,441   1,177,441     490,600.40      98,120.08     686,840.60            .00

5000 Electric                             

000 Undefined                           -24,653,997 -24,653,997  -6,288,601.78  -1,083,504.93            .00 -18,365,395.22   25.5%
028 Veh & Equip Maintenance                  70,380      70,380      14,623.23       2,957.99          15.29      55,741.48   20.8%
029 Facilities Maintenance                  181,130     181,130      24,549.02       6,976.57            .00     156,580.98   13.6%
040 Utility Administration                5,822,997   5,822,997   2,575,590.56     400,298.56     132,159.97   3,115,245.97   46.5%
041 Electric Production                  14,484,289  14,484,289   4,421,663.95   1,696,713.60      32,287.54  10,030,337.51   30.8%
042 Electric Line Repair & Maint          2,618,889   2,618,889     498,804.55      20,860.47     153,513.00   1,966,571.45   24.9%
099 Transfers Out                         1,476,312   1,476,312   1,476,312.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL Electric                              -1          -1   2,722,941.53   1,044,302.26     317,975.80  -3,040,917.83       %

                        TOTAL REVENUES  -24,653,997 -24,653,997  -6,288,601.78  -1,083,504.93            .00 -18,365,395.22
                        TOTAL EXPENSES   24,653,997  24,653,997   9,011,543.31   2,127,807.19     317,975.80  15,324,477.39

Council Packet Page Number 13 



CITY OF UNALASKA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/07/2025 17:00
User:             ktompkins
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      3

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 05

                                           ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
5100     Water                              APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

5100 Water                                

000 Undefined                            -3,758,321  -3,758,321  -1,270,202.79    -132,208.52            .00  -2,488,118.21   33.8%
028 Veh & Equip Maintenance                  42,887      42,887      15,769.11       2,262.27         142.92      26,974.97   37.1%
029 Facilities Maintenance                   79,278      79,278       6,978.88       1,084.00            .00      72,299.12    8.8%
040 Utility Administration                1,961,050   1,961,050     838,685.46     138,213.62      36,019.66   1,086,344.58   44.6%
043 Water Operations                      1,675,106   1,675,106     379,669.33      77,163.57      18,971.69   1,276,464.98   23.8%

     TOTAL Water                                  0           0     -29,100.01      86,514.94      55,134.27     -26,034.56*******%

                        TOTAL REVENUES   -3,758,321  -3,758,321  -1,270,202.79    -132,208.52            .00  -2,488,118.21
                        TOTAL EXPENSES    3,758,321   3,758,321   1,241,102.78     218,723.46      55,134.27   2,462,083.65

5200 Wastewater                           

000 Undefined                            -4,338,638  -4,338,638  -1,275,389.93    -185,942.64            .00  -3,063,248.07   29.4%
028 Veh & Equip Maintenance                  48,839      48,839       7,551.08       1,466.23            .00      41,287.92   15.5%
029 Facilities Maintenance                   95,906      95,906      10,455.41       1,866.71            .00      85,450.59   10.9%
040 Utility Administration                2,052,339   2,052,339     898,642.63     145,468.87      29,386.11   1,124,309.91   45.2%
045 Wastewater Operations                 2,141,554   2,141,554     711,242.93     150,087.26     -22,383.83   1,452,694.90   32.2%

     TOTAL Wastewater                             0           0     352,502.12     112,946.43       7,002.28    -359,504.75       %

                        TOTAL REVENUES   -4,338,638  -4,338,638  -1,275,389.93    -185,942.64            .00  -3,063,248.07
                        TOTAL EXPENSES    4,338,638   4,338,638   1,627,892.05     298,889.07       7,002.28   2,703,743.32

5300 Solid Waste                          

000 Undefined                            -4,388,400  -4,388,400  -1,567,900.94    -259,316.94            .00  -2,820,499.06   35.7%
028 Veh & Equip Maintenance                 161,521     161,521      36,021.01       8,266.21            .00     125,499.99   22.3%
029 Facilities Maintenance                  152,708     152,708      33,440.65       2,733.98            .00     119,267.35   21.9%
040 Utility Administration                1,793,080   1,793,080     713,513.24     135,823.37      14,458.22   1,065,108.38   40.6%
047 Solid Waste Operations                2,156,091   2,156,091     642,136.19     127,772.05      84,700.74   1,429,254.07   33.7%
099 Transfers Out                           125,000     125,000     125,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL Solid Waste                            0           0     -17,789.85      15,278.67      99,158.96     -81,369.27       %

                        TOTAL REVENUES   -4,388,400  -4,388,400  -1,567,900.94    -259,316.94            .00  -2,820,499.06
                        TOTAL EXPENSES    4,388,400   4,388,400   1,550,111.09     274,595.61      99,158.96   2,739,129.79

5400 Ports & Harbors                      

Council Packet Page Number 14 



CITY OF UNALASKA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/07/2025 17:00
User:             ktompkins
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      4

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 05

                                           ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
5400     Ports & Harbors                    APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

000 Undefined                           -11,830,459 -11,830,459  -3,496,420.66    -569,773.70            .00  -8,334,038.34   29.6%
028 Veh & Equip Maintenance                 109,327     109,327      37,410.91       9,353.44        -653.94      72,570.03   33.6%
029 Facilities Maintenance                   73,734      73,734      12,210.45       5,344.33            .00      61,523.55   16.6%
050 Harbor Office                         7,032,970   7,032,970   2,901,782.67     603,054.72      69,917.43   4,061,270.10   42.3%
051 Unalaska Marine Center                1,368,907   1,368,907     647,813.07      59,723.45      24,239.08     696,854.85   49.1%
052 Spit & Light Cargo Docks                850,825     850,825     361,103.10      63,568.21      85,686.44     404,035.46   52.5%
053 Ports Security                           74,227      74,227       5,170.90            .00            .00      69,056.10    7.0%
054 CEM Small Boat Harbor                 1,129,983   1,129,983     395,127.90      88,791.85      27,495.28     707,359.82   37.4%
055 Bobby Storrs Small Boat Harbo           190,486     190,486      68,608.51      13,005.95            .00     121,877.49   36.0%
099 Transfers Out                         1,000,000   1,000,000   1,000,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL Ports & Harbors                        0           0   1,932,806.85     273,068.25     206,684.29  -2,139,490.94       %

                        TOTAL REVENUES  -11,830,459 -11,830,459  -3,496,420.66    -569,773.70            .00  -8,334,038.34
                        TOTAL EXPENSES   11,830,459  11,830,459   5,429,227.51     842,841.95     206,684.29   6,194,547.40

5500 Airport                              

000 Undefined                            -1,027,152  -1,027,152    -149,360.54     -26,460.58            .00    -877,791.46   14.5%
029 Facilities Maintenance                  272,985     272,985      46,081.44       7,940.87       2,858.89     224,044.67   17.9%
056 Airport  Admin/Operations               754,167     754,167     241,452.88      40,838.96      45,149.05     467,565.07   38.0%

     TOTAL Airport                                0           0     138,173.78      22,319.25      48,007.94    -186,181.72  100.0%

                        TOTAL REVENUES   -1,027,152  -1,027,152    -149,360.54     -26,460.58            .00    -877,791.46
                        TOTAL EXPENSES    1,027,152   1,027,152     287,534.32      48,779.83      48,007.94     691,609.74

5600 Housing                              

000 Undefined                              -942,493    -942,493    -101,204.08     -19,972.50            .00    -841,288.92   10.7%
029 Facilities Maintenance                  504,931     504,931      73,257.43      13,050.32         918.05     430,755.52   14.7%
058 Housing Admin & Operating               437,562     437,562     193,007.15      37,051.66      22,126.86     222,427.99   49.2%

     TOTAL Housing                                0           0     165,060.50      30,129.48      23,044.91    -188,105.41  100.0%

                        TOTAL REVENUES     -942,493    -942,493    -101,204.08     -19,972.50            .00    -841,288.92
                        TOTAL EXPENSES      942,493     942,493     266,264.58      50,101.98      23,044.91     653,183.51

                           GRAND TOTAL   -4,644,077  -4,644,077 -11,018,625.97   1,569,546.16   6,596,548.79    -221,999.79   95.2%

                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Kelly Tompkins **                                          

Council Packet Page Number 15 



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2025-02 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING AN ALTERNATIVE 
ALLOCATION METHOD FOR THE FY2025 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM 
AND CERTIFYING THAT THIS ALLOCATION METHOD FAIRLY REPRESENTS THE 
DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY IN THE 
FMA 2: ALEUTIAN ISLANDS AREA 
 
WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY2024 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development that the municipality suffered significant 
effects during calendar year 2023 from fisheries business activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to eligible 
municipalities located within fisheries management areas specified by the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods which may be used 
within fisheries management areas if all eligible municipalities within the area agree to use the 
method, and the method incorporates some measure of the relative significant effect of fisheries 
business activity on the respective municipalities in the area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Unalaska City Council proposes to use an alternative allocation method for 
allocation of FY25 funding available within the FMA 2: Aleutian Islands Area in agreement with all 
other municipalities in this area participating in the FY2025 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council by this resolution certifies 
that the following alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant effects 
during 2023 of fisheries business activity in the municipalities within the FMA 2: Aleutian Islands 
Area:  
  

1. All municipalities share equally 60% of the allocation; and 
2. All municipalities but the Aleutians East Borough share remaining 40% on a per capita basis. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on January 
14, 2025. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Alicia Aguilar 
Acting City Clerk 

Council Packet Page Number 16 



-1- 
 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 
To:  Mayor and Council Members 
From:  Alicia Aguilar, Acting City Clerk 
Through:  William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14, 2025 
Re: Resolution 2025-02: Adopting an alternative allocation method for the FY2025 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program and certifying that this allocation method 
fairly represents the distribution of significant effects of fisheries business activity 
in the FMA 2: Aleutians Islands Area 

SUMMARY: The purpose of this tax program is to provide for a sharing of State fish tax collected 
outside municipal boundaries with municipalities affected by fishing industry activities. This 
resolution is submitted to Council with the assumption that the Alternative Method of distribution 
will be adopted as it has been for more than 30 years. Adak, Atka, Akutan, and the Aleutians East 
Borough, all of which are included in the fisheries management area, have agreed to the 
Alternative Method and are addressing or have addressed the same resolution. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council has adopted the alternative allocation formula for more 
than 30 years. 

BACKGROUND: This program was created to recognize that there are municipalities affected by 
fishing activity outside their municipal boundaries, but that were not receiving a share of the State 
fish tax collected from these activities. 

The Shared Fisheries Tax became law (AS 29.60.450) in 1962 with qualified municipalities 
sharing approximately 10% of the monies. The law evolved from a series of congressional and 
territorial legislation that originally taxed canned salmon receipts and later other fisheries for the 
purpose of funding fisheries-related activities in pre-territorial Alaska. Since becoming law, the 
amount of fisheries business tax shared with qualified municipalities has increased only twice, 
once in 1979 to 20% and in 1981 to the present 50% share.  

DISCUSSION: The Shared Fisheries Tax Program provides two methods for applying for this 
funding. The first method is the Standard Method, which is very complicated and requires a great 
deal of coordinated effort among the affected communities. The second is the Alternative Method 
through which all municipalities within a fisheries management area agree to a formula for 
distribution of funds. This method is less complex and agreeable to all affected communities in 
the management area. 

Atka, Adak, Akutan, and the Aleutians East Borough, all of which participate in this program with 
Unalaska (Fisheries Management Area 2 Aleutian Islands), have been contacted for confirmation 
that they agree on the use of the Alternative Method and that they agree with the formula.  

ALTERNATIVES: Council could choose not to adopt the Alternative Method, in which case the 
Standard Method would be implemented along with the attendant requirements to document and 
report the cost of fisheries business impacts in the community. 

Council Packet Page Number 17 



-2- 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: This table shows the breakdown between the communities in our 
Fisheries Management Area for the FY25 allocation. Unalaska can expect to receive a total of 
$248,660.43:  

 

 

 

 

LEGAL: No legal opinion is necessary for this item. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of Resolution 2025-02. 

PROPOSED MOTION: This item is included on the Consent Agenda. If the item is moved to the 
regular agenda for discussion, the proposed motion would be “I move to adopt Resolution 2025-
02”. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support the staff recommendation. 

ATTACHMENTS: Program materials from the State of Alaska 

 

Council Packet Page Number 18 



GOVERNOR MIKE DUNLEAVY

THE STATE

"ALASKA
Department of Commerce, Community,

and Economic Development
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY AND REGIONAL AFFAIRS

Anchorage Office

550 W 7lh Ave, Suite 1650
Anchorage, Alaska 99501

Main: 907.269.4501
Fax: 907.269.4563

November 8, 2024

City of Unalaska
PO Box 610
Unalaska, AK 99685

Dear Marjie Veeder:

The Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development is pleased to announce availability
of the FY 2025 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program. The purpose of the program is to allocate a share
of state fish tax collected outside municipal boundaries with municipalities affected by fishing industry activities.
Municipalities around the state will share approximately $770,000.00 based on 2023 fisheries activity as reported
by fish processors on their fish tax returns. Details of how the program works are included in the application
under Program Description.

Historically, your municipality along with the other communities in your fisheries management area,
FMA 2: Aleutian Islands has filed using the Alternative Method found on the last four pages of this
application. A breakdown is included that details the communities in your FMA, in addition to the anticipated
payment based on the agreed upon allocation method for your FMA. If this agreement is still in place with your
FMA, you will only need to have your Council/Assembly pass the enclosed alternative method sample
resolution in order to participate in the program.

If your FMA intends to change the alternative method of allocation, the new proposal must be submitted to
our office no later than January 15, 2025. If an agreement cannot be made with all communities in your FMA,
you will need to file using the standard method and claim your significant effects. Instructions on both of these
methods are detailed in the application packet.

DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF COMPLETED APPLICATION IS
FEBRUARY 15, 2025

Applications can be scanned and emailed to caa@alaska.gov with the subject line “City of Unalaska, FY25,
SFBT”. If you have any questions about the program or require assistance in completing the application, please
contact Lindsay Reese at lindsay.recse@alaska.gov or call (907) 269-7906.

Sincerely,

Lindsay Reese
Grants Administrator 2

Council Packet Page Number 19 



I FMA 2: Aleutian Islands FY 22 Landing Tax Allocatio
$453,393.36

Calculated
Allocation

Reference
Number

Total
DistributionCommunity

Total allocation; 60% Divided 40% per capita LONG
$165,114.57 $99,068.74 $66,045.83

Calculated
Population 60% divided share0% per capita shan Allocation

Aleutians East Borough 1,973 $19,813.75 $0.00 $19,813.75
City of Adak ' 72 $19,813.75 $819.17 $20,632.92
City of Akutan ' 1,585 $19,813.75 $18,033.18 $37,846.93
City of Atka ' 55 $19,813.75 $625.76 $20,439.51
City of Unalaska ' 4.093 $19,813.75 $46,567.71 $66,381.46

$54,407.20
$56,656.60

$103,925.10
$56,125.49

$182,278.97

25-SF02-02 $ 74,220.95
25-SF02-01 $ 77,289.52
25-SF02-O3 $ 141,772.03
25-SF02-04 $ 76,565.00
25-SF02-05 $ 248,660.43

$ 618,507.93Totals 7,778 $99,068.74 $66,045.83 $165,114.57
Community Count 5

* All municipalities share equally 60% of allocation; all but Aleutians East Borough share remaining 40% on a per capita basis.
AEB pop = Borough (3685) - Akutan FBT + FLT

CHECK

$453,393.36

$618,507.93
OKAY

Council Packet Page Number 20 



DCCED 
Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 

FY 25 Long-Form Application  
For  

FMA __:_____________ 

APPLICATION MUST BE SUBMITTED TO DCCED 
NO LATER THAN FEBRUARY 15, 2025 

State of Alaska 
Mike Dunleavy, Governor 

Department of Commerce, Community, and 
Economic Development 

Julie Sande, Commissioner 

Division of Community and Regional Affairs 
Sandra Moller, Director 

Council Packet Page Number 21 



FY 25 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS 
TAX PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

The purpose of the Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program is to provide for an annual sharing of fish tax 
collected outside municipal boundaries to municipalities that can demonstrate they suffered significant 
effects from fisheries business activities. This program is administered separately from the state fish tax 
sharing program administered by the Department of Revenue which shares fish tax revenues collected 
inside municipal boundaries. 

Program Eligibility 

To be eligible for an allocation under this program, applicants must: 
1. Be a municipality (city or borough); and
2. Demonstrate the municipality suffered significant effects as a result of fisheries business activity

that occurred within its respective fisheries management area(s).

Program Funding 

The funding available for the program this year is equal to half the amount of state fisheries business tax 
revenues collected outside of municipal boundaries during calendar year 2023. 

Program funding is allocated in two stages: 

1st Stage: Nineteen Fisheries Management Areas (FMAs) were established using existing commercial 
fishing area boundaries. The available funding is allocated among these 19 FMAs based on the pounds 
of fish and shellfish processed in the whole state during the 2023 calendar year. For example, if an area 
processed 10% of all the fish and shellfish processed in the whole state during 2023, then that area would 
receive 10% of the funding available for the program this year. These allocations are calculated based on 
Fisheries Business Tax Return information for calendar year 2023. 

2nd Stage: The funding available within each FMA will be allocated among the municipalities in that 
area based on the level of fishing industry significant effects suffered by each municipality compared to 
the level of effects experienced by the other municipalities in that FMA. 

Some municipalities, because of their extensive area, are included in more than one fisheries management 
area. In these cases, the municipality must submit a separate program application for each area. 

Council Packet Page Number 22 



FY 25 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS 
TAX PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

There are two possible application methods: 
Standard and Alternative 

Standard Method: In the Standard Method, established by the department, each municipality in the 
FMA must determine and document the cost of fisheries business impacts experienced by the community 
in 2023. These impacts are submitted by each municipality in their applications. The department will 
review the applications and determine if the impacts submitted are valid. Once the impacts have been 
established for each of the municipalities in the FMA, the department will calculate the allocation for 
each municipality using the following formula: 

One half of the funding available within an FMA is divided up among participating 
municipalities on the basis of the relative dollar amount of impact in each municipality. 
The other half of the funding available to that area is divided equally among all eligible 
municipalities. 

Alternative Method: Alternative allocation methods may be proposed by the municipalities within the 
FMA. The department will consider approving the use of a proposed alternative method only if all the 
municipalities in the area agree to use the method, and if the method includes some measure of the 
relative effects of the fishing industry on the respective municipalities in the area. 

This application packet contains the instructions and forms applying under: 

• STANDARD METHOD

• ALTERNATIVE METHOD

The chart on the following page summarizes the process for these two methods. 

Council Packet Page Number 23 



 
FY 25 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS 

TAX PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
 

PROCESS FOR METHODS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STANDARD METHOD                                                          ALTERNATE METHOD 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No later than February 15
Each municipality determines and documents 

the cost of fisheries impacts on the community 
and submits this information with their 

application.

No later than April 15
Department of Commerce reviews applications, 
makes a determination as to the validity of the 

submitted impacts, and notifies the municipalities 
of this determination.

Within 30 days                                                                
Municipalities have 30 days in which to appeal 

Commerce's determinations regarding 
submitted impacts.

Within 20 days                                                                   
Commerce will respond to appeals within 20 

days after receiving them.

After all appeals are resolved                                              
Commerce will perform the formula calculations 

for each FMA based on the relative impacts 
approved for each municipality in the FMA, and 

distribute the funding allocations.

November 15
Commerce mails program 

applications to municipalities

No later than January 15 
All municipalities in an FMA work together to develop 

an alternate allocation formula and submit their 
proposal to the Department of Commerce. 

Municipalities are encouraged to consult with 
Commerce during this effort regarding the 

acceptability of alternative methods.

No later than February 1
Commerce reviews alternate proposals, 

determines if proposals are acceptable, and 
notifies the municipalities of this determination. 
If the proposal is accepted, municipalities may 
then use the Alternative Method application. If 
the proposal is not acceptable to Commerce, 

they will work with municipalities in an area to 
resolve problems. If the problems cannot be 

resolved, the municipalities in that FMA must 
apply using the Standard Method application.

No later than February 15
Each municipality must submit an Alternative 
Method application. Commerce will distribute 

allocations after all applications within that FMA 
have been received and verified.

 

Council Packet Page Number 24 



FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
Application Instructions 

 
STANDARD METHOD 

 
• In the standard method application process each municipality determines and documents the 

cost to the municipality of fisheries industry significant effects suffered by the community 
in 2023. 

 
• Details for each of these effects are submitted by municipalities using the Declaration of 

Significant Effects application forms provided on the following pages. 
 
• The municipality must also submit an approved resolution by the governing body certifying 

that the information submitted in the application is correct and complete. A sample resolution 
is included in this packet. 

 
• The department will review the applications and determine if the significant effects 

submitted are valid. 
 
• Once the effects have been established for each of the municipalities in a Fisheries 

Management Area, the department will calculate the funding allocation for each municipality 
using the following formula: 

 
One half of the funding available within an FMA is divided up among participating 
municipalities on the basis of the relative dollar amount of impact in each municipality. 
The other half of the funding available to that area is divided equally among all eligible 
municipalities. 

 
Guidelines for Completing the Declaration of Significant Effects Forms 

 
Some important definitions: The Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program provides for a sharing of 
State Fisheries Business Tax with municipalities that can demonstrate they suffered significant effects 
during the program base year from fisheries business activity in their respective fisheries management 
area. 
 
For the purposes of this program, "fisheries business activity" means: 

• activity related to fishing, including but not limited to the catching and sale of fisheries 
resources; 

• activity related to commercial vessel, moorage and gear maintenance; 
• activity related to preparing fisheries resources for transportation; and, 
• activity related to processing fisheries resources for sale by freezing, icing, cooking, salting, 

or other method and includes but is not limited to canneries, cold storages, freezer ships, and 
processing plants. 

 
And, "significant effects" means: 

Council Packet Page Number 25 



• municipal expenditures during the program base year demonstrated by the municipality to 
the department to be reasonable and necessary that are the result of fisheries business 
activities on the municipality's: 

• population; 
• employment; 
• finances; 
• air and water quality; 
• fish and wildlife habitats; and, 
• ability to provide essential public services, including health care, public safety, 

education, transportation, marine garbage collection and disposal, solid waste 
disposal, utilities, and government administration. 

 
And, "program base year" means: 

• calendar year 2023. 
 

A municipality does not need to have actual expenditures in 2023 in order to include them as 
significant effects in the application. If a fishing business activity impacts a municipality in a manner 
that will result in a cost to the municipality, then the municipality can claim that impact as a significant 
effect. For example, a municipality's pier might have been damaged by an improperly docked fish 
processing vessel. The municipality might not have the funds to repair the pier during 2023, but the 
municipality has obtained final engineering estimates for the cost of repairs. In this case, the municipality 
could declare the repair cost estimates as significant effects on their application. However, these costs 
may not be claimed again if the municipality subsequently expended the monies to repair the pier at a 
later date (this would result in a double counting of significant effects). 
 
If a significant effect claimed in the application reflects expenditures that were determined by the 
municipality to be necessary, but for which the municipality was unable to make an expenditure during 
the program base year, the application must include a finding by the municipal governing body which 
documents and clearly describes the procedures and methods by which the need and the estimated cost 
of such expenditures were determined. 
 
Only that part of overall community impacts which are directly attributable to fishing business 
activity should be included as significant effects in the application. For example, a municipality water 
supply system may be impacted by the fresh water needs of the local fishing fleet and fish processing 
facilities. However, a municipality in this situation should not claim the entire cost of operating or 
maintaining the water system as a "significant effect" for the purposes of this program. In this case, the 
municipality must determine and document its estimate of the share of the use, and "wear and tear," of 
the water system that can reasonably be attributed to fisheries business activity. A place is provided on 
the Declaration of Significant Effects forms for municipalities to explain how they arrived at such 
estimates. 
 
Examples of eligible significant effects. The kinds of negative effects which a municipality might 
possibly claim to have suffered are many. It is the responsibility of each municipality to describe, 
document and justify its particular claims of negative impacts during 2023 resulting from fisheries 
business activities. For the purposes of this program, all significant effects must be presented in terms of 
expenditures of municipal funds, either actual or determined necessary. For example, a sudden 
population increase of 1,000 people is not in itself a negative effect. It is the demonstrable impacts on 
the municipality budget of dealing with these extra people that may be considered as significant effects 

Council Packet Page Number 26 



for this program. The following examples represent the kinds of community impacts which are clearly 
eligible for inclusion in a municipality's Declaration of Significant Effects forms. 
 

• a municipality's expenses during 2023 in repairing a dock damaged by a fishing vessel; 
 
• a municipality's costs of hiring extra police, teachers or medical staff to cover periods during 

2023 when fish processing workers or fishing crew and their families expanded the 
municipality's population; 

 
• a municipality's 2023 loan which was used to improve the municipality's water system to 

meet increased demands for fresh water by local fish processors. Only that part of the debt 
service which can be directly attributable to supporting the fishing industry may be counted 
as a significant effect. 

 
• special expenditures made by a municipality during 2023 to assist or help re-train workers 

who lost their jobs in the fishing industry because of a downturn in fishing activity; 
 
• a municipality's expenditures for operating and maintaining harbor facilities during 2023; 
 
• operating and maintaining a municipality's water and sewer system or landfill during 2023 

that is directly attributable to the fishing industry. 
 

Examples of events which are not eligible to be significant effects 
The following are examples of municipal expenditures or events which are not eligible for inclusion in 
a municipality's Declaration of Significant Effects forms: 
 

• Municipal expenditures that occurred before or after 2023 which are the result of fishing 
business activities; 
 

• Revenues which a municipality did not receive during 2023 because of a downturn in local 
fishing business activity. 

 
If you're not sure whether an event is a valid "significant effect" or not, contact DCCED. 
  

Council Packet Page Number 27 



Instructions for Completing  
the Standard Method Application 

 
The completed standard method application submitted by each municipality will contain three elements: 
 

• a set of Declaration of Significant Effects forms (one separate form for each significant effect 
claimed by the municipality). Three copies of this form are included in the application- please 
make as many additional copies of this form as you need. 

 
• a Cover Page that provides the total number and cost of the significant effects claimed by the 

municipality. 
 
• an approved resolution by the governing body adopting the application as true and correct. A 

sample resolution is included in the application. 
 

Instructions for the 
Cover Page/Summary 

The Cover Page must be completed and submitted as part of the application. This form summarizes the 
information found in the application. The number of significant effects claimed should be equal to the 
number of Declarations of Significant Effects forms submitted with the application and the total dollar 
amount should equal the sum of all the dollar amounts stated in Part 2 on the Declarations of Significant 
Effects forms. 
 

Instruction for the Resolution form 
Municipalities may use this form, or a similar form, to comply with the requirement that the submitted 
application be certified by the municipality's governing body. 
 

Submit completed application  
no later than February 15, 2025, to: 

 

E-mail 
caa@alaska.gov  

Subject Line 
“Municipality Name, FY25, SFBT” 

 
Or 

 
Mail 

State of Alaska DCCED 
Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 

550 W. 7th Ave Ste 1650 
Anchorage, Alaska 99501 

 

If you have any questions regarding this program, contact  
Lindsay Reese, 907.269.7906  

Council Packet Page Number 28 

mailto:caa@alaska.gov


FY 25 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM 

STANDARD METHOD APPLICATION 
for  

FMA __:_____________ 
Name of Municipality: 

Mailing Address: 

Contact Person: 

Title: 

Phone Number: 

Email Address:  

Total # of Significant Effects Claimed:

Total $ of Significant Effects Claimed: $ 

Return with, Declaration of Significant Effects forms, and resolution 

E-mail
caa@alaska.gov  

Subject Line 
“Municipality Name, FY25, SFBT” 

Or 

Mail 
State of Alaska DCCED 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
550 W. 7th Ave Ste 1650 

Anchorage, Alaska 99501 

Council Packet Page Number 29 

mailto:caa@alaska.gov


FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
DECLARATION OF 

SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS FORM 
(One Separate Form for Each Significant Effect Claimed) 

1. Provide a description of the fisheries business activity which resulted in the significant effect:

2. Total significant effect (municipal expenditure) made necessary during 2023 by the fisheries business
activity listed in #1: $ ____________

3. Municipal expenditure is: ☐ actual ☐ determined necessary
(Every municipal expenditure marked "determined necessary" must be supported by a resolution) 

4. Describe how the municipal expenditure figure listed under Part 2 was determined:

5. Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality?
☐ yes ☐ no

If yes, describe how the fisheries business-related part of the overall fiscal impact was determined. 

6. Describe the documentation that supports the municipality's claim of this significant effect
(this documentation must be readily available to the department upon request):

Council Packet Page Number 30 



FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
DECLARATION OF 

SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS FORM 
(One Separate Form for Each Significant Effect Claimed) 

1. Provide a description of the fisheries business activity which resulted in the significant effect:

2. Total significant effect (municipal expenditure) made necessary during 2021 by the fisheries business
activity listed in #1: $ ____________

3. Municipal expenditure is: ☐ actual ☐ determined necessary
(Every municipal expenditure marked "determined necessary" must be supported by a resolution) 

4. Describe how the municipal expenditure figure listed under Part 2 was determined:

5. Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality?
☐ yes ☐ no

If yes, describe how the fisheries business-related part of the overall fiscal impact was determined. 

6. Describe the documentation that supports the municipality's claim of this significant effect
(this documentation must be readily available to the department upon request):

Council Packet Page Number 31 



FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
DECLARATION OF 

SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS FORM 
(One Separate Form for Each Significant Effect Claimed) 

1. Provide a description of the fisheries business activity which resulted in the significant effect:

2. Total significant effect (municipal expenditure) made necessary during 2023 by the fisheries business
activity listed in #1: $ ____________

3. Municipal expenditure is: ☐ actual ☐ determined necessary
(Every municipal expenditure marked "determined necessary" must be supported by a resolution) 

4. Describe how the municipal expenditure figure listed under Part 2 was determined:

5. Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality?
☐ yes ☐ no

If yes, describe how the fisheries business-related part of the overall fiscal impact was determined. 

6. Describe the documentation that supports the municipality's claim of this significant effect
(this documentation must be readily available to the department upon request):

Council Packet Page Number 32 



FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
Standard Method Resolution 

 
_______________________ 

(City or Borough) 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE FY 25 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM 
APPLICATION TO BE TRUE AND CORRECT 
 
WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business 
Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 
Development that the municipality suffered significant effects during calendar year 2023 from fisheries business 
activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development has prepared specific 
application forms for the purpose of presenting the municipality's claims as to the significant effects suffered by 
the municipality during calendar year 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.100 requires the governing body of the municipality to include with the municipality's 
FY 25 program application an approved resolution certifying the information contained in the application to be 
true and correct; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The ________________________________by this resolution certifies the information contained in 
 (Governing Body) 
the ________________________________ 
 (City or Borough)  
 
 
FY25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program Application to be true and correct to the best of our knowledge. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the ____________________ this ____  
  (Governing Body) 
day of __________ , 20 ___. 
  
 
 
SIGNED ___________________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST ___________________________________ 
 Clerk 
  

Council Packet Page Number 33 



 
FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 

Application Instructions 
 

ALTERNATIVE METHOD 
 

• In the alternative method application process all municipalities in a fisheries management 
area may work together to develop an alternative allocation formula for distributing the 
available program funding among municipalities in the area. It is advised that the Department 
of Commerce be consulted during this process if the municipalities have questions or 
concerns about what constitutes an acceptable alternative to the standard allocation method. 
 

• All the municipalities in an area must reach an agreement in writing on an alternative 
allocation formula. 
 

• By January 15, the department must receive the proposed alternative method. If the 
alternative method is not acceptable, the department will work with the municipalities to 
resolve the problems. 
 

• If the municipalities in an area fail to satisfy the department regarding the acceptability of 
the alternative allocation method proposed, then each municipality in the region must return 
to the standard application process and submit separate applications as required by that 
process. 
 

• If the department finds the alternative allocation method satisfactory, each municipality must 
then complete an alternative method application consisting of a cover page and resolution. 
The resolution must be adopted by the governing body and it must clearly describe the 
approved alternative allocation method within that area. After all alternative method 
applications within an area have been received and approved; the department will perform 
the allocations and distribute program funds. 

  

Council Packet Page Number 34 



Instructions for 
Alternative Method Application 

 
In the alternative method application, an approved resolution constitutes the application. No other forms 
need to be submitted. A sample resolution has been attached for your use. 

 
General Guidelines for Developing an Alternative Allocation Method  

 
All municipalities in a fisheries management area must agree on the alternative method: There 
must be unanimous agreement among all eligible municipalities in a fisheries management area with 
regard to alternative allocation methods. It is the responsibility of community leaders in the area to work 
together to negotiate an alternative which is acceptable to all municipalities. The department may be 
consulted at any time regarding what kinds of formula approaches are considered acceptable by the 
department. 
 
Alternative methods must incorporate some measure of the relative significant effects experienced 
by the respective municipalities in the area. The measure of significant effects may take many forms. 
One area might agree to use the number of commercial fishing boat visits-per-year per community as a 
measure of significant effects. Another area might use the linear foot-length of public docks as a measure. 
Another area might use community population figures as an indication of the significant effects of 
fisheries business activity. Another area might share one half of the funding equally between the 
respective municipalities and share the other half based upon community population figures. Areas may 
decide to use one measure or may use a combination of measures. 
 

Submit your completed application 
no later than  

February 15, 2025 to: 
 

E-mail 
caa@alaska.gov  

Subject Line 
“Municipality Name, FY25, SFBT” 

 
Or 

 
Mail 

State of Alaska DCCED 
Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 

550 W. 7th Ave Ste 1650 
Anchorage, Alaska 99501 

 
If you require assistance in completing this application, contact  

Lindsay Reese 907.269.7906. 

Council Packet Page Number 35 

mailto:caa@alaska.gov


FY 25 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM 

ALTERNATE METHOD APPLICATION 
For  

FMA       :             

Name of Municipality: 

Mailing Address: 

Contact Person: 

Title: 

Email Address: 

Phone Number: 

Return with resolution 

E-mail
caa@alaska.gov  

Subject Line 
“Municipality Name, FY25, SFBT” 

Or 

Mail 
State of Alaska DCCED 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
550 W. 7th Ave Ste 1650 

Anchorage, Alaska 99501 

Council Packet Page Number 36 

mailto:caa@alaska.gov


FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
Alternative Method Resolution 

__________________________________ 
(City or Borough) 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD FOR THE FY25 
SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM AND CERTIFYING THAT THIS 

ALLOCATION METHOD FAIRLY REPRESENTS THE DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT 
EFFECTS OF FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY IN FMA __:_____________

WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY 25 Shared Fisheries Business 
Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 
Development that the municipality suffered significant effects during calendar year 2023 from fisheries business 
activities; and, 

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to eligible municipalities 
located within fisheries management areas specified by the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 
Development; and, 

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods which may be used within fisheries management 
areas if all eligible municipalities within the area agree to use the method, and the method incorporates some 
measure ofthe relative significant effect of fisheries business activity on the respective municipalities in the area; 
and, 

WHEREAS, The _______________________________ proposes to use an alternative allocation method for 
(Governing Body) 

allocation of FY25 funding available within the FMA    :                                         in agreement with all other 
municipalities in this area participating in the FY25 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The ____________________________by this resolution 
(Governing Body)

certifies that the following alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant 
effects during 2023 of fisheries business activity in  FMA     : 

• All municipalities share equally 40%  of allocation; all share remaining 60% on a per capita basis.

• Lake & Peninsula Borough population is reduced by the population of the  Cities of Newhalen,
Nondalton, Pilot Point & Egegik

PASSED and APPROVED by a duty constituted quorum of the __________________ this _____day 
(Governing Body)

of _________ 20___.

SIGNED __________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST __________________________ 
Clerk 

Council Packet Page Number 37 



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2025-03 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING DATES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 REAL PROPERTY TAX AND 
BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX COLLECTION EFFORT 
 
WHEREAS, UCO 6.36.020 states that taxes become due and are delinquent on dates set yearly by resolution. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council sets the following dates and deadlines 
for the FY26 real property tax and business personal property tax collection effort:  

  

January 15, 2025 Mailing of Business Personal Property Assessment forms  

February 28, 2025 Deadline to file Business Personal Property Tax Return 

March 25, 2025 Deadline to mail Real Property and Business Personal Property Regular, 
Supplemental and Involuntary Assessment Notices 

April 24, 2025 Deadline for filing Appeals to the Board of Equalization 

May 13, 2025 Board of Equalization meets 

June 30, 2025 Deadline to mail Real Property and Business Personal Property Regular, 
Supplemental and Involuntary Tax Statements 

August 20, 2025 First half payment due date for regular Real and Business Personal Property 
Tax rolls 

August 20, 2025 Final payment due date for Supplemental and Involuntary Business Personal 
Property Tax rolls 

August 21, 2025 Unpaid taxes become delinquent and subject to penalty and interest 

October 20, 2025 Second half payment due date for regular Real and Business Personal 
Property Tax rolls 

October 21, 2025 Unpaid taxes become delinquent and subject to penalty and interest 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on January 14, 2025. 
             
      
 
        ____________________________ 
        Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 
        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alicia Aguilar 
Acting City Clerk 

Council Packet Page Number 38 



 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Alicia Aguilar, Acting City Clerk 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14, 2025 
Re: Resolution 2025-03: Establishing dates for the fiscal year 2026 real property tax 

and business personal property tax collection effort  
 
 
SUMMARY: UCO 6.36.020 states that taxes become due and are delinquent on dates set yearly 
by resolution. Resolution 2025-03 accomplishes this objective, as well as setting other dates for the 
tax collection effort. Staff recommends adoption. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council addresses a similar resolution each year. 
 
BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: The resolution before you tonight is very similar to the 
resolutions adopted by council in the past, adjusting the dates for the tax year and to ensure that 
due dates do not fall on weekends. Starting in 2022, we moved back by five days the due dates 
for mailing assessment notices and for filing appeals to the Board of Equalization. This change 
was made to provide our assessor additional time to investigate and respond to appeals before 
the Board of Equalization meeting.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: Setting due dates for tax payments is required by our Code of Ordinances, and 
it helpful for staff and taxpayers alike to have clear deadlines set for other items related to the tax 
collection effort. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None. 
 
LEGAL: None.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2025-03. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: This resolution is included on the consent agenda. Should Council wish 
to move this item to the regular agenda for discussion, a proposed motion is “I move to adopt 
Resolution 2025-03.” 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: I support Staff’s recommendation.  

Council Packet Page Number 39 



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2025-04 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING PRIORITY RANKINGS FOR 
THE FY26 - FY35 CAPITAL AND MAJOR MAINTENANCE PLAN PROCESS GUIDE 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Capital and Major Maintenance Plan (CMMP) is to formalize the 
process of identifying and completing capital projects and major maintenance projects; and  

WHEREAS, the CMMP Process Guide has eight (8) priority areas that serve as a tool to help City 
staff review, analyze and assign values to projects based on direction from City Council to 
effectively address the City’s needs; and 

WHEREAS, the eight (8) priority areas are: Plans/Comprehensive Plan; Regulatory Compliance; 
Infrastructure/Public Safety; Quality of Life/Health and Wellness; Impact on Operational Budget; 
External Funding; Timing/Location; and Innovation; and 

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2024 the City Council was invited to individually rank the eight (8) 
priority areas and submit them to the Planning Department for summary analysis; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Department entered the values into a matrix to produce the priority 
weights for this year’s CMMP Process Guide. In order of priority, they are:  

1. Regulatory Compliance, Infrastructure/Public Safety, and Impact on Operational 
Budget 

2. External Funding, Plans/Comprehensive Plan, and Quality of Life/Health and Wellness 

3. Timing/Location, and Innovation 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council approves and adopts the 
above priority rankings for this year’s CMMP Process Guide. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on January 
14, 2025.  

 
      ___________________________________ 
      Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Estkarlen Magdaong, CMC 
City Clerk 

Council Packet Page Number 40 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Cameron Dean, Planning Director 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14, 2025 
Re:  Resolution 2025-04: Adopting priority rankings for the FY26 - FY35 Capital and 

Major Maintenance Plan Process Guide 
   
 
SUMMARY: This memorandum supplements the last City Council work session regarding the 
Capital and Major Maintenance Plan (CMMP) Process Guide, which proposes a schedule of 
deadlines and meeting dates involving the CMMP and its preparation and adoption. In addition to 
the schedule, the guide also maintains eight project categories for evaluating and ranking projects 
according to city priorities, projects that match adopted legislative priorities and projects that are 
planned well in advance. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: City Council reviews the 10-year CMMP annually each winter 
and typically adopts it in April. In 2020 the Planning Department introduced the ranking exercise 
to City Council to provide each councilmember the opportunity to weigh each criterion. At the last 
CMMP worksession, Staff briefed City Council on this year’s changes and introduced this year’s 
ranking exercise. 

BACKGROUND: Title 6 of the Unalaska City Code requires the City Manager to submit a five-
year capital improvement plan and budget of the proposed projects each year in conjunction with 
the City’s operating budget. City Council adopts the CMMP annually to help identify needs and 
set spending priorities for the coming period. This is the fifth year Unalaska will prepare a 10-year 
CMMP. All prior plans were only for 5-year periods. 

DISCUSSION: Following the November 12 City Council meeting, the Planning Department 
received ranking sheets from the councilmembers in the attached table. The provided resolution 
is based on their combined responses. 

Additionally, Council adopts legislative priorities annually. Staff also amended the CMMP Process 
Guide to reflect the work City Council does with identifying said priorities and focus areas. Staff 
assigns point values of ten (10) to be added to projects which address Federal and State priorities, 
and five (5) points added to those that address Focus Areas. This inclusion provides deference 
to City Council’s work and better assists Staff with sorting and prioritizing the CMMP projects. 

ALTERNATIVES: The worksheet and summary of Council responses are provided to aid 
discussion. Council may choose to change the priorities in the resolution as it sees fit. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None. This is a guide for a planning document. 

LEGAL: Not Applicable. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Resolution 2025-04 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to adopt Resolution 2025-04. 

Council Packet Page Number 41 



 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: I support Staff’s recommendation. 

ATTACHMENTS: FY26 Priorities Table 

 

Council Packet Page Number 42 



Council Ranking Priorities
Category Bell Coleman Longo Looby Mean Final

Plans/Comprehensive Plan 3 2 2 2 2.3 2

Regulatory Compliance 1 1 3 1 1.5 1

Infrastructure/Public Safety 1 2 1 2 1.5 1

Quality of Life/Health and 

Wellness 3 2 2 2 2.3 2

Impact on Operational Budget 2 1 1 1 1.3 1

External Funding 2 3 1 1 1.8 2

Timing/Location 1 3 3 3 2.5 3

Innovation 3 1 3 3 2.5 3

FY 26-35 CMMP

Council Packet Page Number 43 



CITY OF UNALASKA 

UNALASKA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 2025-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL SUPPORTING THE CITY’S ACCEPTANCE OF THE U.S. 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 2024 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM GRANT (SHSP) 

AWARD 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Homeland Security’s (DHS) State Homeland Security 

Program (SHSP) provides approximately $3.5 billion in grants to help state and local governments 

prevent terrorism, increase election security, provide training for law enforcement, and increase 

community preparedness and resilience; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska submitted an SHSP application in February of 2024 to fund the 

purchasing of security cameras for both City Hall and the Public Safety building; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed benefits of this program are strengthening the security framework of City Hall 

and Public Safety, which will result in greater protections for City staff, allow for greater security during 

local elections, and reduce both building’s vulnerabilities to domestic terrorism; and 

WHEREAS, the requirements of this grant include quarterly financial and progress reports, a National 

Cybersecurity Review, and annual inventory survey. The City of Unalaska is capable and willing to meet 

all requirements of the grant; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Homeland Security awarded the City of Unalaska $103,350.00 in grant 

funds for the aforementioned security camera program in November of 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the terms of the grant require the City Manager and other Signatory Officials designated on 

the original grant application sign a Grant Award by February 20th, 2025; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council hereby authorize the City Manager to 

sign the SHSP Grant Award by the aforementioned due date in order to receive the allocated $103,350 in 

funding and support security camera implementation in both City Hall and Public Safety. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on December 14th, 

2025. 

 

        ____________________________ 

        Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 

        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Alicia Aguilar 

Acting City Clerk 

Council Packet Page Number 44 



 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Jackie Adams, Grants Management Coordinator 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14th, 2025 
Re: Resolution 2025-05: Supporting the city’s acceptance of the U.S. Department of 

Homeland Security 2024 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) award 
  
SUMMARY: This is a resolution to accept the $103,350 awarded by the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security’s State Homeland Security Program to the City of Unalaska. These funds are 
to allow the City to purchase security cameras for both City Hall and Public Safety. Adding these 
security cameras will increase the safety of City employees, help secure the locations commonly 
used for important government business such as City Council meetings and elections, and 
strengthen each building’s ability to protect against domestic terrorism.   
 
The grant award needs to be signed and returned to DHS before February 20th, 2025. This 
resolution authorizes the City Manager to sign the grant agreement.  
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: None.  
 
BACKGROUND: The SHSP grant program is administered by the DHS in order to support state 
and local government projects that will increase election security and reduce vulnerability to 
terrorism.  
 

The City has previously received SHSP awards to build security fencing at the Unalaska Marine 
Center (2018) and Haystack Communications Site (2019).  
 
DISCUSSION: The City of Unalaska was awarded $103,350 under the SHSP grant, with no 
cost matching requirement. The need for security cameras in both City Hall and Public Safety 
was determined based on input from the City Hall staff and the City Manager.  Several new 
employees have verbalized that they have never seen a City Hall facility with no security 
measures in place. The security cameras installed in the Public Safety Building have reached 
the end of their useful life and must be replaced. Staff had previously planned to replace the 
building’s cameras with City funds. There are also the added benefits of increasing election 
security and ensuring that the building can be properly monitored at all times.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: City Council may choose to adopt the resolution or do nothing. However, if this 
grant is not signed by February 20th, 2025, we will lose the funding, and it will reflect negatively 
on the City of Unalaska’s grant management capability should the City apply for DHS grants in 
the future.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There are no financial obligations to the City of Unalaska by 
adopting this resolution. Once awarded, Staff will present a budget amendment to accept the 
funds and create a capital project. This is a reimbursed award, so the City will complete the project 
using General Funds before being reimbursed by the grantor.  
 

Council Packet Page Number 45 



LEGAL: None.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: This resolution is on the Consent Agenda and will be approved in the 
blanket motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. If moved to the Regular Agenda for discussion the 
proposed motion is: I move to adopt Resolution 2025-05.  
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: I support the staff’s recommendation.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: The original grant award letter from the Department of Homeland Security and 
the Obligating Award Document that the City Manager will sign to formally accept the funds.   
 

Council Packet Page Number 46 



Council Packet Page Number 47 



Council Packet Page Number 48 



Council Packet Page Number 49 



Council Packet Page Number 50 



Council Packet Page Number 51 



Council Packet Page Number 52 



Council Packet Page Number 53 



Council Packet Page Number 54 



Council Packet Page Number 55 



(U) Project Implementation: Due to the competitiveness of the 2024 State Homeland Security Program, approved projects must be ready-to-go.
Project implementation shall begin within the first reporting quarter.

1. If a project cannot be operational within the first reporting quarter of the approved award date, the subrecipient should notify DHS&EM of the
implementation delay and expected starting date. At the discretion of DHS&EM, the grant award is subject to cancellation, and funds may be
de-obligated and reallocated to other projects if project implementation is unjustifiably delayed.

(V) The City of Unalaska shall comply with the requirements and restrictions of the Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2024 State Homeland Security Program
(HSGP) Program Guidance, State Overview and Guidelines, State Preparedness Report, and the State Homeland Security Strategy. By signing this
obligating award document, the City of Unalaska certifies it has read, understood, and accepted these documents as binding.

(W) No funds will be reimbursed until City of Unalaska fiscal and programmatic representatives attend a 2024 Grant Kick-Off Meeting to be held
electronically in November 2024.

(X) The City of Unalaska must complete a Quarterly Activities Plan by January 20, 2025. Information on this requirement will be emailed and provided
at the 2024 Grant Kick-Off meeting.

(Y) The City of Unalaska must attend the state's Multi-Year Integrated Preparedness Planning Workshop (IPPW), to be held in conjunction with the
2025 Preparedness Conference, and develop a local jurisdiction Multi-Year Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP) to be submitted to DHS&EM by March
1, 2025.

(Z) The City of Unalaska must complete DHS&EM NIMS Implementation Questionnaire to demonstrate continued utilization and work towards the
NIMS Implementation Objectives.

(AA) The City of Unalaska must complete the Nationwide Cybersecurity Review (NCSR) by December 31, 2024. More information on this online self¬
assessment will be provided at the 2024 Kick-Off Meeting and can be found in the 2024 HSGP NOFO: Fiscal Year 2024 Homeland Security Grant
Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (alaska.gov).

Special Conditions

(A) The City of Unalaska shall not undertake any project having the potential to impact Environmental or Historic Preservation (EHP) resources without
the prior approval of FEMA, including but not limited to communications towers, physical security enhancements, new construction, and modifications to
buildings, structures, and objects that are 50 years old or greater. The City of Unalaska must comply with all conditions placed on the project as the
result of the EHP review. Any change to the approved project scope of work will require re-evaluation for compliance with these EHP requirements. If
ground-disturbing activities occur during project implementation, the City of Unalaska must ensure monitoring of ground disturbance, and if any potential
archeological resources are discovered, the City of Unalaska will immediately cease construction in that area and notify FEMA and the appropriate State
Historic Preservation Office. Any construction activities that have been initiated without the necessary EHP review and approval will result in a non-
compliance finding and will not be eligible for FEMA funding. The City of Unalaska must submit an Environmental Historic Preservation (EHP) Statement
of Work Request for the following project(s):

1. Security Framework - City Hall
2. Surveillance Cameras

We certify we have read, understood, and accept the Grant Terms and Conditions, the Grant Requirements, and Assurances and
Agreements, and Special Conditions in accordance with this Award.

Project Manager’s Signature

Chief Financial Officer's Signature

Signatory Official's Signature

Council Packet Page Number 56 



Council Packet Page Number 57 



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2025-06 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING TAXICAB RATES FOR 
CALENDAR YEAR 2025 
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska Code of Ordinances § 9.12.065 requires all licensed taxicabs operating within 
the city to have installed an instrument (meter) by which charges for hire of such taxicabs are 
calculated; and 
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska Code of Ordinances requires that the meter shall calculate the fare and be 
calibrated in accordance with the fare standards set by the City Council at its first regular meeting in 
January each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the taxi rates for calendar year 2025 will not change from the rates for calendar year 
2024. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council establishes the taxicab rates 
for 2025, which include the 3% sales tax, as follows:   
 

• $2.65 per flag drop;  
• $0.30 per 1/10 mile;  
• $5.30 for each additional fare over two;  
• $1.06 per minute waiting time; 
• $80.00 per hour charter. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said rates include a Senior Citizen Discount of $1.00 off any 
metered rate between $5.00 and $10.00, and $2.00 off any metered rate over $10.00. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on January 
14, 2025. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 
      Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Alicia Aguilar 
Acting City Clerk 

Council Packet Page Number 58 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Alicia Aguilar, Acting City Clerk 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14, 2025 
Re: Resolution 2025-06: Establishing taxicab rates for the calendar year 2025 as 

required by the Unalaska Code of Ordinances 
 
 
SUMMARY: Unalaska Code of Ordinances (UCO) § 9.12.065(A)(3) requires that the City Council 
set taxicab rates at the first regular meeting in January each year. Resolution 2025-06 sets the 
rates for calendar year 2025 at the same level as the rates for 2024. Staff recommends adoption 
of this resolution. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council has adopted taxicab rates annually since 1993. Through 
Resolution 2006-01, Council increased rates by $0.03 per minute for waiting time and added $80 
per hour for charters. Rates have not changed since 2006. 

BACKGROUND: The taxicab ordinance was adopted in 1993 and revised in 2003 and 2005. In 
2005, several changes were made, but UCO § 9.12.065(A)(3) has not changed through the years 
of revision. The ordinance requires the City Council to set the rates each year. At the time of the 
1993 adoption, the Taxi Owner’s Association was active and provided input on this issue. 

During a meeting held at Public Safety in November 2017, taxi drivers and taxi permit holders 
expressed no interest in changing the rates. There was no public comment on this topic at the 
council meetings from 2018-2024. 

On December 16, 2024, the City Clerk mailed letters to all taxi permit holders inviting them to 
attend tonight's council meeting to submit comments regarding taxicab rates for 2025.  No written 
responses have been received at the time this memo was written; however, one permit holder 
spoke with personnel in the Clerk’s Department, indicating they desired to see an increase in 
rates.  This taxi permit holder and all others were encouraged to provide comment either in writing 
or in person at tonight’s meeting. 

ALTERNATIVES: Adopt rates as recommended, raise the rates, or lower the rates. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: If rates are changed, it is expected that a corresponding increase 
or decrease would be seen in sales tax revenue to the City. Also, if rates are changed, meters 
would have to be reprogrammed at the expense of taxi owners.  

LEGAL: None. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the adoption of Resolution 2025-06. 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to adopt Resolution 2025-06. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support the staff recommendation.  

ATTACHMENT: Letter to taxi permit holders. 

Council Packet Page Number 59 



Council Packet Page Number 60 



   

- 1 - 

 
 

 

 
  

  
 

 
     

  

  
 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

  

  
  

   
 

  
 

       
 

 

  CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

ORDINANCE 2024-15

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AMENDING  TITLE 14 OF THE
UNALASKA  CODE  OF  ORDINANCES  REGULATING  THE  USE  OF  OFF-ROAD  OR
ALL-PURPOSE  VEHICLES WITHIN CITY LIMITS

WHEREAS,  in  2022,  state  regulations  were  amended  to  allow  all-purpose  vehicles  to
operate on public roadways where not prohibited by local law or ordinance; and

WHEREAS,  off-road  vehicles,  also  known  as  all-purpose  vehicles,  are  presently
prohibited in the City of Unalaska; and

WHEREAS,  the use of off-road vehicles  or all-purpose vehicles  is both convenient and
economical,  subject  to  state  law  and  to  city  ordinances  as  this  Council  may  adopt,  to
ensure public safety and lack of conflict with other drivers and pedestrians.

NOW  THEREFORE  BE  IT  ENACTED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  CITY  OF
UNALASKA, as follows:

Section 1: Classification.  This is a Code Ordinance.

Section 2:  Amendment of  Section  14.04.010  Definitions.  Section 14.04.010  (M) of the
Unalaska Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows [new language is
underlined; deleted language is  overstruck]:

  (M)  “All-purpose vehicle (APV)” as defined in 13 AAC 40.010(a)(67)
means any  self-propelled vehicle designed to travel on wheels or tracks in 
contact  with  the  ground  and  is  commonly  used  to  transport  persons  for 
recreational purposes, including vehicles such as four-wheel-drive units, all-
terrain vehicles (ATVs), or utility terrain vehicles (UTVs);  the definition  does
not  include  off-highway  vehicles  as  defined  in  13  AAC  40.010(a)  or 
snowmobiles.  “OFF  ROAD  VEHICLE”  means  any  vehicle  that  is  being 
operated off a  highway.

Section  3:  Amendment  of  Section  14.08.020  Off  Road  Vehicle  Operation.  Section
14.08.020  of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances is hereby amended  to read as follows:

§ 14.08.020  OFF ROAD  ALL-PURPOSE  VEHICLE OPERATION.

It shall be unlawful to operate an  all-purpose vehicle  off-road vehicle  in the
City of Unalaska:

(A)  On  private  property  owned  by  a  person  other  than  the  driver  without 
having  the  written  consent  of  the  owner  of  the  property  in  the  driver's 
possession.

Council Packet Page Number 61 



   

- 2 - 

 
  

 
 

 

 

  

   

        

        

        

        

  

 

   

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

Code Section Offense Description Fine Amount 

 14.08.020(A) Unlawful operation of APV ATV: driving 
on private property 

 $100   
$1,000 

 14.08.020(B) Unlawful operation of ATV: driving on 
non-designated public property 

 $100 

(B)  On public property which has not been officially designated as an area
for  off-road vehicle operation.

(BC)  On  a  sidewalk  or  trail  designed  and  maintained  for  non-motorized
travel  unless such travel is necessary for the purpose of directly crossing,
at approximately a  ninety-degree  angle, from one area of lawful operation
to another, after coming to a complete stop and yielding to all pedestrians
or other traffic.

(D)  Repealed.

(E)  In such a manner as to throw or scatter debris or other material onto:

(1)  Any improved real property;

(2)  Any sidewalk;

(3)  Any paved driveway; or

(4)  Any paved highway.

(F)  On  a  highway,  or  sidewalk,  unless  such  travel  is  necessary  for  the
  purpose of directly crossing, at approximately a ninety degree angle, from
  one area of lawful operation to another, after coming to a complete stop and
  yielding to all pedestrians or other  traffic.

(G)  Between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and  8:00 a.m.

(CH)  This section shall not apply to an employee of a municipal or state law
  enforcement  agency  while  in  the  performance  of  the  employee's  official
  duties.

Section 4:  Amendment of Section 14.04.025.  Section 14.04.025(C), FINE SCHEDULE
FOR  LOCAL  TRAFFIC  OFFENSES,  of  the  Unalaska  Code  of  Ordinances  is  hereby
amended to read as follows:

(C)  An  offense  listed  in  this  schedule  may  not  be  disposed  of  without  court 
appearance if the offense is in connection with a motor vehicle  accident that results
in the death of a person.

…

Council Packet Page Number 62 



Ordinance reflecting amendments made by Council on November 12, in bold italics. 

- 3 - 

 14.08.020(BC) Unlawful operation of APV ATV: 
driving on sidewalk or nonmotorized 
trail 

 $100 

 14.08.020(E)(1) Unlawful operation of APV ATV: 
scattering debris on improved real 
property 

   $100 

 14.08.020(E)(2) Unlawful operation of ATV: scattering 
debris on sidewalk 

  $100 

 14.08.020(E)(3) 
 

Unlawful operation of ATV: scattering 
debris on paved driveway 

  $100 

 14.08.020(E)(4) Unlawful operation of ATV: scattering 
debris on paved highway 

  $100 

 14.08.020(F) Unlawful operation of ATV: highway or 
sidewalk 

$100 

14.08.020(G) Unlawful operation of ATV: between 
hours of 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 

$100 

  

  

 
 

 
 
 
       
       
       
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

...

Section  5:  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect  upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on
November 26,  2024.

___________________________________
Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr.
Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________
AAAlicia Aguila Alicia Aguilaria 
Acting City Clerk

Council Packet Page Number 63 



- 1 - 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Marjie Veeder, Deputy City Manager 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date: November 12, 2024 (Memo updated for November 26 Council Meeting – updates 

are shown in bold italics) 
Re: Ordinance 2024-15: Amending Title 14 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances 

regulating the use of off-road or all-purpose vehicles within the city limits 
 
 
SUMMARY: Following a work session conducted on the same topic, on September 24, 2024, 
Council unanimously directed the City Manager to “bring to council an ordinance change to allow 
APV use on public roads in Unalaska.” Ordinance 2024-15 accomplishes this directive. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  
 
November 12, 2024: Council introduced Ordinance 2024-15 and scheduled it for public hearing 
and second reading on November 26, 2024. Council also amended the fine amount for unlawful 
operation of an APV, driving on private property, from $100 to $1,000; and deleted the fine for 
unlawful operation of APV, driving on sidewalk or nonmotorized trail. See further information 
below in the legal section. 
 
December 28, 2021: Staff provided information in work session in response to an inquiry from 
Council, and submitted a proposed ordinance amending local code to provide clarification as a 
result of the State’s code change. 
 
February 8, 2022: Council directive to bring a draft ordinance on February 22, 2022, regarding 
off-road vehicle use. 
 
February 22, 2022: Proposed Ordinance 2022-04 was introduced but failed to go to 2nd reading. 
This ordinance edited the definition of off-road vehicle and indicated that it would be unlawful to 
operate an off-road vehicle in the city on public property which had not been designated by the 
City as an area for off-road vehicle operation.  
 
February 22, 2022: Council directive to bring a draft ordinance allowing APV use on public roads 
in Unalaska. 
 
March 22, 2022: Proposed Ordinance 2022-05 was introduced, but failed to go to 2nd reading. 
This ordinance: 
 

• Edited the definition of off-road vehicle; 
• Indicated that it would be unlawful to operate an off-road vehicle in the city on public 

property which had not been designated by the City as an area for off-road vehicle 
operation;  

• Allowed use of off-road vehicles on city roads by striking the word highway in the list of 
areas that such use was prohibited; 

Council Packet Page Number 64 



- 2 - 
 

• Added that all off-road vehicles operated on the roadway must comply with all National 
Highway Traffic Safety, United States Department of Transportation, and State of Alaska 
regulations to include registration and insurance requirements; and 

• Added that snowmobiles are prohibited from being operated on the roadway, unless such 
travel is necessary for the purpose of directly crossing, at approximately a ninety degree 
angle, from one area of lawful operation to another, after coming to a complete stop and 
yielding to all pedestrians or other traffic. 

 
During the meeting on March 22, 2022, a motion was made to edit the ordinance to strike the 
restriction on hours of operation; but this motion failed. It was also moved to postpone 
consideration of the ordinance, which also failed.  
 
June 11, 2024: Council directive to place on agenda an ordinance change to allow APV use on 
public roads in Unalaska.  
 
September 24, 2024: Work session discussion of proposed ordinance in response to the June 11 
directive. 
 
BACKGROUND: Beginning January 1, 2022, the state of Alaska began to allow all-purpose 
vehicles on roadways where the speed limit is less than 45 miles per hour and where boroughs 
or municipalities have not banned their use within their boundaries. Our city code presently 
prohibits off-road vehicle use in the city, which was in effect before the state law changed in 2022. 
If the Council chooses to allow use of all-purpose vehicles, state laws will still apply. The city 
attorney’s memo from the September 24, 2024 packet lists some of those laws that will still apply 
in Unalaska if Council decides to allow all-purpose vehicle use. 
 
DISCUSSION: Ordinance 2024-15 (1) amends the definition of off-road or all-purpose vehicles; 
(2) removes the prohibition of all-purpose vehicle use on city roads; and (3) amends the related 
fine schedule for local traffic offenses accordingly.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: Council’s alternatives include adopting the ordinance as presented; proposing 
amendments to the ordinance; or doing nothing, which means the prohibition against all-purpose 
vehicles will continue in Unalaska.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None at this time, other than attorney fees.  
 
LEGAL: City attorney Sam Severin authored the proposed ordinance, and has been working 
closely with city staff on this issue.  
 
City Attorney Sam Severin remotely attended the November 12 Council meeting and responded 
to inquiries from Council. A question was asked about what happens if we delete the fine for 
driving on a sidewalk? Does it just default to state law? Mr. Severin interpreted the question to 
mean what happens if we delete both 14.08.020 B (the actual prohibition against driving on a 
sidewalk) as well as the corresponding entry in the fine schedule. If both are deleted, there would 
essentially be no city law on that point and state law would govern.  
 
Simply deleting the fine would have a different effect. That effect is the person would have to 
go to court, because UCO 14.04.025 states: 
 
      

Council Packet Page Number 65 



- 3 - 
 

§14.04.025 FINE SCHEDULE FOR LOCAL TRAFFIC OFFENSES. 
[emphasis added] 
 
(A) In accordance with AS 28.05.151(a), citations for the following offenses may 
be disposed of as provided in AS 12.25.195-.230, without a court appearance, 
upon payment of the fine amounts listed below plus the state surcharge required 
by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074. Fines must be paid to the court. The Rules of 
Minor Offense Procedure in the Alaska Rules of Court apply to all offenses listed 
below. Citations charging these offenses must meet the requirements of Minor 
Offense Rule 3. If a person charged with one of these offenses appears in court 
and is found guilty, the penalty imposed for the offense may not exceed the fine 
amount for that offense listed below. These fines may not be judicially reduced. 
If an offense is not listed on the fine schedule, or if the citation indicates a court 
appearance is required, the defendant must appear in court to answer to the 
charges. 

 
Because Council deleted the fine only, and not the prohibition of driving on the sidewalk, the 
effect then is a person would have to go to court to get sentenced. Alternatively, law enforcement 
could write the citation under state law, which would then avoid having to go to court. At the 
end of the day, there is a default - it defaults to the court system to impose a fine. The court 
would likely consider state law for guidance on the fine amount.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation, as the proposed ordinance is in response to 
a directive from Council. However, Staff believes the proposed ordinance complies with Council’s 
directive.  
 
As for driving an APV on a sidewalk or nonmotorized trail and the related fine, Staff 
recommends that Council either (1) amend the ordinance to insert a local fine; or (2) amend 
the ordinance to remove the prohibition of driving on a sidewalk or nonmotorized trail. In the 
first instance, both the prohibition of driving on a sidewalk and the fine would be contained in 
our local ordinance. In the second instance, the default would fully be to state law.  
 
A mandatory court appearance, which would be the result of the recent amendment, does have 
a benefit. It creates a degree of accountability by having the offender attend court. On the other 
hand, this requires an officer to prepare for and attend court. Legal counsel believes that setting 
a fine in the city code is preferable.  The state laws are not particularly easy to research; stating 
a clear prohibition in the city code provides the best actual notice to the public. Additionally, to 
the extent that driving on sidewalks proves problematic, the city can easily increase the fine in 
response.    
 
Staff recommends that Council amend the ordinance to insert a local fine for driving an APV 
on the sidewalk or non-motorized trail. The amount of the fine is at Council’s discretion, but 

the State’s fine for driving a vehicle on the sidewalk is $150.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: First reading: I move to introduce Ordinance 2024-15 and schedule it for 
public hearing and second reading on November 26, 2024. 
 

Council Packet Page Number 66 



- 4 - 
 

Second reading: I move to adopt Ordinance 2024-15. 
 
If Council wishes to amend the ordinance to add back in the fine for driving on a sidewalk or 
non-motorized trail, the proposed motion is as follows, including the desired amount of the fine: 
 
I move to amend Section 4 of Ordinance 2024-15, UCO 14.04.025 Fine Schedule, to include a 
fine of $_____ for violation of 14.08.020(B), Unlawful operation of an APV: driving on sidewalk 
or non-motorized trail. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: I concur with the Staff Recommendation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Council packet documents from September 24, 2024. 

Council Packet Page Number 67 



-1- 

CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

ORDINANCE 2024-16 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AMENDING UCO § 3.40.040 TO ADOPT 
A NEW PAY RANGE MATRIX TO APPLY A COST OF LIVING INCREASE 

WHEREAS, UCO § 3.40.010 states that the objectives of the City’s plan are (a) to provide an 
appropriate salary structure to recruit and retain an adequate supply of competent employees; 
and (b) to provide appropriate pay incentives for productivity and quality; and 

WHEREAS, UCO § 3.40.020 requires the City Manager to periodically (but no less often than 
every three years) review the pay plan and make a report to the City Council discussing whether 
or not the pay plan accurately reflects existing conditions; and to determine the accuracy of pay 
ranges; and 

WHEREAS, the City retained a professional consultant to conduct a classification and 
compensation study and create a new pay range matrix for our unrepresented employees, which 
was adopted by Council on March 12, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the consultant recommended that the pay range matrix be updated at least annually 
in order to apply cost of living increases; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends a cost of living increase be applied to the pay range 
matrix to keep it current. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL, as follows: 

Section 1: Classification. This Ordinance is a Code Ordinance. 

Section 2: Amendment of Section 3.40.040 Pay Range Matrix. The Unalaska City Council has 
determined a _____% cost of living increase is in order, and Section 3.40.040 of the Unalaska 
Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows [old pay rates are overstruck and new 
pay rates are underlined;]:  

 

 

 

 

This space intentionally left blank 

  

Council Packet Page Number 68 



-2- 

 

  

Council Packet Page Number 69 



-3- 

 

 

 

 

Council Packet Page Number 70 



-4- 

 

 

 

Council Packet Page Number 71 



-5- 

 

 

NOTE:  

Insert updated Pay Range Matrix charts for annual, semi-monthly and 
hourly pay once the Cost-of-Living Increase is determined by the 
Unalaska City Council on November 26, 2024. These charts will be 
inserted before Public Hearing and Second Reading on December 17, 
2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 3: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect on January 1, 2025. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
December 17, 2024. 

 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Estkarlen P. Magdaong, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

Council Packet Page Number 72 



- 1 - 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Marjie Veeder, Deputy City Manager 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  November 26, 2024 
Re: Ordinance 2024-16: Amending UCO § 3.40.040 to adopt a new pay range matrix 

to apply a cost of living increase 
 
 
SUMMARY: Ordinance 2024-16 will adjust the pay range matrix for Title 3 unrepresented 
employees to apply a cost of living increase. Staff recommends that a cost of living increase be 
applied to the wage scales to keep them current, and provided to our current employees. 
  
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: There has been no previous council action on this ordinance. 
The pay range matrix for Title 3 unrepresented employees was last updated on March 12, 2024, 
with the adoption of Ordinance 2024-04. That ordinance implemented a new pay range matrix as 
a result of the classification and compensation study conducted by McGrath Human Resources 
Consultants (McGrath). 
 
BACKGROUND: The present pay range matrix for our Title 3 unrepresented employees was 
implemented earlier this year and employees received the resulting wage increases effective April 
1, 2024. In addition to bringing the pay for each position up to market, the new pay scales included 
a cost-of-living adjustment for calendar year 2024.  
 
The new pay scales were implemented on April 1, 2024 so the administration decided to forgo 
merit and cost-of-living increases which typically occur just three months later on July 1 each year. 
The plan moving forward is to provide cost-of-living increases on January 1 each year and adjust 
the pay scale so that it does not become outdated. Merit increases are based on acceptable 
performance evaluations and will be granted on July 1 each year.  
 
It is important to update the pay range matrix in relation to cost-of-living increases. Fair 
compensation is important for employee retention, assists with recruiting new employees, and 
prevents disparity and salary compression in relation to the pay scales of the represented 
employees. 
 
DISCUSSION: When the FY2025 Budget was prepared earlier this year, economic indicators 
were predicting a 2% cost-of-living adjustment for 2025, and a 2% increase was the amount we 
budgeted for in the current FY25 budget.  
 
At this time there are several disparities between COLA economic indicators, which range from a 
low of 2.5% to a high of 4.2%. The City Manager wanted to provide a synopsis of each indicator 
for your consideration and discussion. They include the following: 
 

1. Social Security Administration (SSA): The SSA announced recently that their benefit 
recipients will receive a 2.5% cost-of-living adjustment effective January 1, 2025.  

 

Council Packet Page Number 73 



- 2 - 
 

2. Consumer Price Index (CPI): The CPI is a measure of the cost of living that tracks price 
changes over time. The data is distilled down into the following: 
 

a. The nationwide CPI for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) increased 2.6% over the last 
12 months. 

b. The Urban Alaska CPI-U for the 12 months ending in October 2024 was 2.1%. 
c. The Urban Alaska CPI-U for the 12 months ending in October 2024, for all items 

excluding food and energy, was 3.0%. 
 
I asked our Planning Department and Grants Management Coordinator to compile a report to 
examine the various measures available for COLA calculations and provide recommendations for 
the most applicable. A copy of the full report is attached, recommending, in descending order of 
applicability:  
 

1. Use the CPI-U for Urban Hawaii (4.2%). As discussed, the CPI-U is a robust and widely 
used measure for calculating COLA. It is limited to urban consumers, however, and 
therefore may not be representative of the cost-of-living struggles faced by Unalaskans. 
Hawaii, however, is geographically similar to Unalaska, shares many of the same hurdles, 
and appears to mirror the cost of living increases demonstrated by the Unalaska Cost of 
Living Index. As of the writing of this report, the first half Consumer Price Index for Hawaii 
is 4.2%, and this is likely the best estimation for an appropriate COLA for Unalaska Title 
III employees. 

2. Use the Unalaska COLI Percentage Increase (8.6%). While the Unalaska COLI study 
has some notable methodological issues, both in data structure and collection, it still 
provides the most customized picture of Unalaska quality of life. The increase in the 
Composite Index score for Unalaska from Q1 2023 to Q1 2024 is 8.6%.  

3. Use the COLA Baseline from the McGrath Compensation Report (3.0%). When 
discussing how their projected salary schedules would change based on future cost of 
living adjustments, the McGrath report used a baseline of 3.0%. This is a plausible 
estimation, based on a review of average CPI increases, and would serve as a reasonable 
salary adjustment. 

ALTERNATIVES: We are asking Council to decide the amount of the COLA. The ordinance as 
presented does not include the COLA percentage increase. Council may also choose to do 
nothing. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The FY25 budget, our current year, includes funding for a 2% 
COLA for the second half of the year, January 1 through June 30, 2025.  
 
If the COLA is increased to 2.5%, it will cost an additional $17,020 in addition to funds already 
appropriated. We may or may not need to request a budget amendment for additional funding, as 
there are many factors that impact whether or not a budget amendment is needed, such as vacant 
positions, overtime and unplanned personal leave cash-outs. 
 
The cost of a COLA at the following percentages, in addition to funds already appropriated, and 
for which a budget amendment will be needed, are: 
 
  (a) 3% - $34,040;   (b) 4.2% - $74,887;  (c) 8.6% - $224,661. 
 
 

Council Packet Page Number 74 



- 3 - 
 

LEGAL: None needed. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends providing a cost-of-living adjustment for our 
employees so they can maintain their present purchasing power, especially in light of the high 
cost of living in Unalaska. Secondly, we need to maintain our wage scales with regular cost-of-
living adjustments in order to attract qualified candidates to open positions.  

PROPOSED MOTION:  
 

• Main Motion on 1st reading: I move to introduce Ordinance 2024-16 and schedule it for 
public hearing and second reading on December 17, 2024. 

 
• Motion to Amend: As we are asking Council to decide the amount of the COLA, a motion 

to amend the ordinance will be needed. The suggested motion would be: I move to amend 
Section 2 of Ordinance 2024-16, to insert a COLA increase of _____%. 

 
• Main Motion on 2nd reading: I move to adopt Ordinance 2024-16. 

 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: Updated wage scales are crucial for attracting qualified 
applicants to our organization. This marks the first opportunity to adjust the scales for COLA since 
the Council approved the Title 3 wage increases. I strongly encourage the Council to support our 
efforts in maintaining a competitive and desirable workplace, fostering team growth, and 
upholding our commitment to equitable and current wages for Title 3 employees. 
 
Therefore, I recommend using the CPI-U for Urban Hawaii (4.2%), as it accounts for similar 
challenges to those we face in Unalaska and aligns with the cost of living increases reflected in 
the Unalaska Cost of Living Index. For consistency, I also propose tying the COLA to this index 
in future years. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Planning Department Report: Recommendations for Calculating Cost of 
Living Adjustments for City of Unalaska Employees, November 2024 
 
 

Council Packet Page Number 75 



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

ORDINANCE 2024-17 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AMENDING UCO 9.20.025(B) TO 
ALLOW FOOD AND NON-ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SERVICE AT LICENSED PREMISES 
MONDAY THROUGH SUNDAY FROM 5:30 A.M. UNTIL SUCH HOUR AS THE LICENSED 
PREMISES IS AUTHORIZED TO DISPENSE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, as follows: 

Section 1: Classification. This Ordinance is a Code Ordinance. 

Section 2: Unalaska Code of Ordinances, Section 9.20.025 OPERATING HOURS FOR 
LICENSED PREMISES is hereby amended to read as follows: [New language is underlined; 
and deleted language is overstruck.] 

§ 9.20.025 OPERATING HOURS FOR LICENSED PREMISES. 
 
…  
 
(B) Restaurants and bars with an existing license to dispense alcoholic 
beverages by the drink may lawfully allow persons or customers on premises for 
food and non-alcoholic beverage service on Sundays from 8:00 a.m. Monday 
through Sunday from 5:30 a.m. until such hour as the licensed premises is 
authorized to dispense alcoholic beverages by § 9.20.020 unless the 
establishment is otherwise required to be closed by this chapter or any other law. 

 

Section 3: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
December 17, 2024. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Estkarlen P. Magdaong, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

Council Packet Page Number 76 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/unalaska/latest/unalaska_ak/0-0-0-26533#JD_9.20.020


- 1 - 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Marjie Veeder, Deputy City Manager 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  November 26, 2024 
Re: Ordinance 2024-17: Amending UCO 9.20.025(B) to allow food and non-alcoholic 

beverage service at licenses premises Monday through Sunday from 5:30 a.m. 
until such hour as the licenses premises is authorized to dispense alcoholic 
beverages. 

 
 
SUMMARY: Council Member Looby properly submitted an Agenda Item Request to the City 
Clerk, requesting a change to UCO 9.20.02, regarding operating hours for licensed premises, to 
allow food and non-alcoholic beverage service Monday through Sunday beginning at 5:30 a.m. 
each day. The request is dated November 1, 2024, and was submitted to the City Clerk on 
November 12, 2024. Council Member Bell also signed the request. Ordinance 2024-17 was 
prepared for Council’s consideration in response to the Agenda Item Request. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: There has been no previous action on Ordinance 2024-17. 
 
This section of code was last amended on December 22, 2015, with the adoption of Ordinance 
2015-25, allows licensed premises to serve food and non-alcoholic beverages on Sundays from 
8:00 a.m. until such hour as the licenses premises is authorized to dispense alcohol.  
 
On December 19, 2023, Council adopted Ordinance 2023-23, a temporary non-code ordinance 
allowing extended hours for the sale of alcohol on New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: Pursuant to UCO § 9.20.020, Closing Hours for Licensed 
Premises, it is lawful for liquor license holders to dispense alcoholic beverages in the city during 
the following times:  
 

Monday  8:00 a.m. through Tuesday 2:00 a.m. 
Tuesday  8:00 a.m. through Wednesday 2:00 a.m. 
Wednesday  8:00 a.m. through Thursday 2:00 a.m. 
Thursday  8:00 a.m. through Friday 2:00 a.m. 
Friday   8:00 a.m. through Saturday 3:00 a.m. 
Saturday  8:00 a.m. through Sunday 3:00 a.m. 
Sunday 12:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 
It is unlawful to dispense alcoholic beverages during hours not authorized in code.  
 
It is also unlawful for licensed premises to allow customers on the premises during hours when 
alcohol cannot be lawfully dispensed, except as provided otherwise in code. UCO § 9.20.025, 
allows food and non-alcoholic beverage service on Sundays from 8:00 a.m. until such hour as the 
licensed premises is authorized to dispense alcoholic beverages. Presently, the only time food 
and non-alcoholic beverages and food may be served, outside the hours of lawful alcohol sales, 
is from 8:00 a.m. until noon on Sundays.  

Council Packet Page Number 77 



- 2 - 
 

If Council wishes to proceed with Council Member Looby’s request, it is a simple code change, 
accomplished by striking out “… on Sundays from 8:00 a.m.” and adding “Monday through 
Sunday from 5:30 a.m. …” 
 

§ 9.20.025 OPERATING HOURS FOR LICENSED PREMISES. 
 
…  
 
(B) Restaurants and bars with an existing license to dispense alcoholic beverages 
by the drink may lawfully allow persons or customers on premises for food and 
non-alcoholic beverage service on Sundays from 8:00 a.m. Monday through 
Sunday from 5:30 a.m. until such hour as the licensed premises is authorized to 
dispense alcoholic beverages by § 9.20.020 unless the establishment is otherwise 
required to be closed by this chapter or any other law. 

 
Council Member Looby owns the Norwegian Rat Saloon and the adoption of this ordinance could 
benefit her business monetarily. For this reason, Ms. Looby approached staff to discuss her 
request and inquired about the best way to bring it the matter before Council. After consulting with 
the City Attorney, staff suggested Council Member Looby utilize the Agenda Item Request method 
set out in UCO § 2.20.025.  
 
If adopted, this code change would benefit all licensed premises in Unalaska, of which there are 
7 or 8, and not just the establishment Ms. Looby owns.  
 
Police Chief Kim Hankins indicated that the proposed code change would not impact the 
Department of Public Safety, nor is it likely to increase enforcement calls to the police department.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: Council may adopt the ordinance as written; amend it; or do nothing.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The City may enjoy increased sales tax revenue if this ordinance 
is adopted, but the amount is not expected to be significant.  
 
LEGAL: City Attorney Sam Severin was consulted about Ms. Looby’s request, and also reviewed 
Ordinance 2024-17 and has no concerns. Mr. Severin indicated there is no restriction on the city 
changing the hours for food and beverage service in licensed premises, and there is much 
discretion at the local level to set the hours.  
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff sees no problems with the proposed ordinance, and if local 
businesses have the opportunity to generate additional income, that is viewed as a good thing.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  
 
First reading: I move to introduce Ordinance 2024-17 and schedule it for public hearing and 
second reading on December 17, 2024. 
 
Second reading: I move to adopt Ordinance 2024-17. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: I concur with the staff recommendation.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: Agenda Item Request 

Council Packet Page Number 78 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/unalaska/latest/unalaska_ak/0-0-0-26533#JD_9.20.020


Council Packet Page Number 79 



Council Packet Page Number 80 



BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL

Section 1. Classification: This is a non-code ordinance.

Section 2. Effective Date: This ordinance becomes effective upon adoption.

Section 3. Content: The City of Unalaska FY25 Budget is amended as follows:

A. That the following sums of money are hereby accepted and the following sums of money

are hereby authorized for expenditure.

B. The following are the changes by account line item.

Amendment No. 1 to Ordinance 2024-08

Current Requested Revised

I.  OPERATING BUDGETS

A. General Fund

Sources:

Crab Disaster Relief -$                    270,726.00     270,726.00      

Dinh Judgment 207,126.03     207,126.03      

Local Support - APIA -$                    13,090.59       13,090.59        

-$                    490,942.62     490,942.62      

Uses:

Transfers to Government Capital Projects 600,000.00$        477,852.03     1,077,852.03   

Parks, Culture and Recreation - Rec Programs 1,015,885.00$     13,090.59       1,028,975.59   

1,615,885.00$     490,942.62     2,106,827.62   

B. Proprietary Funds

Sources:

Electric - Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 6,648,018.00$     520,250.00     7,168,268$      

Water - Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 1,347,873.00$     31,750.00       1,379,623$      

Wastewater - Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 1,151,749.00$     31,750.00       1,183,499$      

Solid Waste - Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 867,812.00$        54,250.00       922,062$         

10,015,452.00$   638,000.00     10,653,452$    

Uses:

Transfer to Electric Utility Admin Expense 5,822,997.00$     170,250.00     5,993,247.00   

Transfer to Electric Project 1,476,312.00$     350,000.00     1,826,312.00   

Transfer to Water Utility Admin Expense 1,961,050.00$     31,750.00       1,992,800.00   

Transfer to Wastewater Utility Admin Expense 2,052,339.00$     31,750.00       2,084,089.00   

Transfer to Solid Waste Utility Admin Expense 1,793,080.00$     54,250.00       1,847,330.00   

13,105,778.00$   638,000.00     13,743,778.00 

CITY OF UNALASKA

UNALASKA, ALASKA

ORDINANCE 2025-01

CREATING  BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET, APPROPRIATING $270,726 FROM 

CRAB DISASTER RELIEF FUNDS AND $207,125.03 FROM THE DINH JUDGMENT TO CREATE THE PROJECT 

"DEVELOPING RECYCLING INFRASTRUCTURE AND VEHICLE END-OF-LIFE (DRIVE)"; RECOGNIZING LOCAL 

SUPPORT REVENUE OF $13,090.59 IN THE GENERAL FUND AND INCREASING THE PCR OPERATING BUDGET 

BY $13,090.59 FOR THE SENIOR EXERCISE PROGRAM; INCREASING THE ELECTRIC ADMIN OPERATING 

BUDGET BY $116,000 FOR THE EPS CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT; AND INCREASING THE ELECTRIC 

FUND OPERATING BUDGET BY A TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS TO INCREASE THE GENERATOR SETS 

REBUILD PROJECT BY $350,000; INCREASING THE ELECTRIC, WATER, WASTEWATER, AND SOLID WASTE 

FUNDS BY A TOTAL OF $172,000 FOR A UTILITY RATE STUDY

-1-

Council Packet Page Number 81 



II.  CAPITAL BUDGETS

A.  Governmental Project Budget

Sources:

Crab Disaster Relief and Dinh Settlement -$                    477,852.03     477,852.03      

-$                    477,852.03     477,852.03      

Uses:

DRIVE Project -$                    477,852.03     477,852.03      

B.  Electric Project Budget

Generator Sets Rebuild (FY25)

Sources:

Transfers to Enterprise Capital Projects 1,476,312.00$     350,000.00     1,826,312.00   

Uses:

Generator Sets Rebuild Project (FY25) 455,000.00$        350,000.00     805,000.00      

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on January 14, 2025.

________________________________________

Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. 

Mayor

Attest:

Alicia Aguilar

Acting City Clerk

-1-

Council Packet Page Number 82 



City of Unalaska, Ordinance 2025-01

FY25 Budget Amendment 1

1) General Fund - Operating Budget

Add $270,726 to Crab Disaster Relief Revenue & Other Revenue 

Add $207,126.03 to Other Revenue (Dinh Judgment) 

Add $477,852.03 to Transfers to Govt Capital Projects for DRIVE Project

Add $13,090.59 to PCR Private Contributions for Rec Program for Senior Exercise Program

2)  Electric Fund - Operating Budget

Add $520,250 to Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets

Add $170,250 to Electric Utility Admin - Other Professional Services (EPS & Rate Study)

Add $350,000 to Transfers to Enterprise Capital Projects (for EL25A)

3)  Water Fund - Operating Budget

Add $31,750 to Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets

Add $31,750 to Water Utility Admin - Other Professional Services (Rate Study)

4)  Wastewater Fund - Operating Budget

Add $31,750 to Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets

Add $31,750 to Wastewater Utility Admin - Other Professional Services (Rate Study)

5)  Solid Waste Fund - Operating Budget

Add $54,250 to Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets

Add $54,250 to Solid Waste Utility Admin - Other Professional Services (Rate Study)

6)  General Fund - Capital Projects

Add $477,852.03 to Transfers from General Fund

Add $477,852.03 to create DRIVE Project (PW25A),

7)  Electric Fund - Capital Projects

Add $350,000 to Transfers from Proprietary Funds

Add $350,000 to Generator Sets Rebuild Project (EL25A)

Org Object Project Current Requested Revised

1) General Fund - Operating Budget

Sources:

PSM Disaster Commission Check 01010041 42370 -$                  270,726.00$ 270,726.00$     

Other Revenue - Dihn Judgment 01010048 49410 207,126.03$ 207,126.03$     

PCR Private Contributions 01012047 47400 -$                  13,090.57$   13,090.57$       

Uses:

Transfer to Government Capital Projects 01029854 59920 600,000.00$     477,852.03$ 1,077,852.03$  

Rec Programs - Temp Employees 01023251 51200 32,400.00$       13,090.59$   45,490.59$       

2) Electric Fund - Operating Budget

Sources:

Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 50015049 49910 6,648,018.00$  520,250.00$ 7,168,268.00$  

Uses:

Electric Admin - Other Professional 50024052 53300 38,000.00$       170,250.00$ 208,250.00$     

Transfers to Enterprise Capital Projects 50029854 59940 1,476,312.00$  350,000.00$ 1,826,312.00$  

3) Water Fund - Operating Budget

Sources:

Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 51015549 49910 1,347,873.00$  31,750.00$   1,379,623.00$  

Uses:

Water Admin - Other Professional 51024052 53300 21,400.00$       31,750.00$   53,150.00$       

4) Wastewater Fund - Operating Budget

Sources:

Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 52016049 49910 1,151,749.00$  31,750.00$   1,183,499.00$  

Uses:

Wastewater Admin - Other Professional 52024052 53300 33,600.00$       31,750.00$   65,350.00$       

5) Solid Waste Fund - Operating Budget

Sources:

Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Assets 53016549 49910 867,812.00$     54,250.00$   922,062.00$     

Uses:

Solid Waste Admin - Other Professional 53024052 53300 15,900.00$       54,250.00$   70,150.00$       

6) General Fund - Capital Project Budgets

DRIVE Project

Sources:

Transfer from General Fund 31019848 49100 PW25A -$                  477,852.03$ 477,852.03$     

Uses:

Other Professional 31021553 53300 PW25A -$                  477,852.03$ 477,852.03$     

7) Electric Fund - Capital Project Budgets

Generator Sets Rebuild (FY25)

Sources:

Transfers from Proprietary Fund 50119848 49130 EL25A 455,000.00$     350,000.00$ 805,000.00$     

Uses:

Repair & Maintenance 50125053 54300 EL25A 455,000.00$     350,000.00$ 805,000.00$     

Summary of Budget Amendment and Schedule of Proposed Accounts

-2-

Council Packet Page Number 83 



-1-

AMENDED 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor and City Council Members 
From: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date: January 3, 2025 
Re: Ordinance 2025-01: Creating Budget Amendment #1 to the Fiscal Year 2025 

Budget, appropriating $270,726 from Crab Disaster Relief Funds and $207,125.03 
from the Dinh judgment to create the project “Developing Recycling Infrastructure
and Vehicle End-of-Life (DRIVE)”; recognizing local support revenue of
$13,090.59 in the general fund and increasing the PCR operating budget by 
$13,090.59 for the Senior Exercise Program; increasing the Electric Admin 
Operating Budget by $116,000 for the EPS Consulting Services Agreement; 
increasing the Electric Fund Operating Budget by a transfer to capital projects to 
increase the generator sets Rebuild Project by $350,000, and increasing the Utility 
Admin budget by $172,000 to pay for a Utility Rate Study from the appropriate 
proprietary funds as prescribed in the Summary below.  

SUMMARY: Ordinance 2025-01 will move: 

1. $520,250 in Electrical Proprietary Fund Balance into the Utility Admin budget for the EPS
Contract of $116,000; $350,000 into the Electric Project Budget for Engine Rebuilds, and
$54,250 the electric utility’s share of the rate study (to be awarded to Newgen Strategies
& Solutions Inc. (Newgen) for the;

2. $31,750 in Water Proprietary Fund Balance into the Utility Admin budget for the water
utility’s share of the rate study to be awarded to Newgen;

3. $31,750 in Wastewater Proprietary Fund Balance into the Utility Admin budget for the
wastewater utility’s share of the rate study to be awarded to Newgen;

4. $54,250 in Solid Waste Proprietary Fund Balance into the Utility Admin budget for the solid
waste utility’s share of the rate study to be awarded to NewGen;

5. $13,090.59 received from APIA into the PCR Budget for the Senior Exercise program; and

6. $477,852.03 from Crab Disaster Relief Funds of $270,726; and the Dinh judgment of
$207,126.03 into the DRIVE Project to fund the removal of junk and abandoned vehicles
and other recycling efforts.

BACKGROUND: This budget amendment involves appropriating $956,942.62 across several 
departments and programs including the Electric Utility, PCR and Planning. The explanations are 
presented by the department herein. 

Council Packet Page Number 84 



-2-

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

Engine Rebuild Project (EL25A): In September of 2024 the Powerhouse requested a proposal 
from Wartsila North America to perform the 24,000-hour major overhaul of Unit #10. The 
maintenance was scheduled to occur between the 2024 “B” season and 2025 “A” season, the 
powerhouse has utilized this timing in years past to minimize service interruptions, as it coincides 
with a period when the operational load is typically at its lowest. Wartsila North America’s proposal 
totals $694,086.51 this includes all associated parts and labor. 

The city has opted to engage Wartsila North America to rebuild parts and provide maintenance 
based on several key factors. Wartsila has consistently demonstrated a high standard of service 
quality, ensuring that all aspects of the rebuild meet rigorous standards, optimizing each unit’s 
performance during and after the rebuilds by utilizing original equipment manufacturer parts and 
providing robust warranty options which provide additional assurance regarding the reliability and 
longevity of the units. 

Alternatives: Due to material lead times, some of the work is underway or planned to begin once 
the necessary funds are allocated. The additional funds requested will primarily be designated to 
cover the costs associated with the on-site rebuilding and commissioning of the unit. 

EPS Contract: After the Council did not consider a fourth amendment to the PPA with OCCP, 
staff began reevaluating power needs and alternatives to meet current and future demands. To 
proceed in a direction that is in the City’s best interest and to ensure informed decisions are made 
for the successful growth of the organization, we requested a proposal from EPS to evaluate the 
city's power needs and potential development. 

Alternatives: EPS started the study in June of this year, and we received the first draft on 
December 6, 2024. To proceed effectively, we require funding to cover both the costs associated 
with the study and the operational expenses of the electric administration. 

Utility Rate Studies: In 2020 the City contracted Aldrich, LLP to conduct its most recent rate 
studies. Their recommendations were adopted in FY21 which included one-time increases to the 
Electric and Water utilities and incremental increases to the Wastewater and Solid Waste utilities. 
Additionally, appropriations from the 1% Sales Tax Fund were utilized to minimize rate increase 
impacts.  

Utility rate studies are recommended every 3-5 years, this ensures rates are assessed and 
adjusted as needed to avoid revenue shortfalls and large rate increases. By utilizing a qualified 
firm, the City can assess its current utility cost of service and explore alternative rate models to 
models to minimize additional increases. 

Staff posted a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) in November of 2024 for financial consulting 
services, two bids were received during the solicitation period. After evaluating both bids staff 
selected NewGen Strategies and Solutions based on the following factors: 

1. Professional Qualifications
NewGen provided qualified staff specifically assigned to oversee each fund during the rate
study. They provided specific staff to oversee all aspects of the study to ensure the
accurate and timely delivery of services.

Council Packet Page Number 85 



-3-

2. Ability to Provide and Meet Scope of Services
NewGen demonstrated a strong track record in performing cost of service assessments
and rate re-designs for electric utilities. This portion requires experience to ensure a full
understanding of the complexities and nuances involved in accurately analyzing such
changes.

3. Public Communications
NewGen included a team focused on public communication, which is essential for
engaging with all constituents ensuring transparency throughout the rate study process.
The ability for a firm to communicate their findings effectively will be essential for
enhancing public understanding. Additionally, NewGen demonstrated success with similar
utilities throughout the state of Alaska communicating and presenting rate changes.

NexGen’s proposal totals $172,000, a summary of each fund allocation is provided below as are 
the balances for each proprietary fund as of 12-31-2024. 

Proprietary Fund Fund Balance Cost Per Fund 
Electric  $14,897,076 $54,250 
Water  $4,320,092 $31,750 
Wastewater  $4,377,287 $31,750 
Solid Waste  9,968,614 $54,250 
Total NA $172,000 

Alternatives: The City needs to keep its rates current with the costs to provide the utility services. 
NewGen’s proposal includes about $32,000 for conducting public outreach and education about 
utilities, rates, and the need for maintaining proper rates. This could be eliminated to save cost 
however it is one of the reasons we selected this firm. NewGen’s proposal and our Request for
Qualifications are attached. 

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, CULTURE AND RECREATION (PCR) 

The Aleutian Pribilof Islands Association (APIA) partnered with the Department of Parks, Culture 
and Recreation (PCR) to develop a senior exercise program. APIA received a grant to fund the 
program and is working with PCR to provide an instructor. PCR requests a budget amendment to 
allocate an additional $13,090.59 to 01023251-51200 (Temporary Employees) to hire the 
instructor for this program. This amount reflects the amount of money APIA received to fund the 
personnel portion of the program. PCR will invoice APIA for the hours worked by the instructor, 
and we will receive reimbursement for those hours up to the $13,090.59 per the APIA grant. The 
result is a $0 net loss to the City and gives PCR the ability to provide a much-needed senior 
exercise class in cooperation with APIA. The program will end when the grant funds are 
exhausted. 

Alternatives: Council may choose to approve the budget amendment and fund the program; or 
not approve the funding and cancel the program. 

Council Packet Page Number 86 



-4-

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

The Planning Department is working with the Departments of Public Utilities and Public Works on 
a program titled Developing Recycling Infrastructure and Vehicle End-of-life (DRIVE) and 
submitted a grant application to the Environmental Protection Agency for $3,700,480.  The 
specific grant program is Solid Waste Infrastructure for Recycling (SWIFR). The project is 
structured around five key components: a program to process and remove abandoned vehicles; 
purchasing processing equipment and storage units for material sorting and shipment; a public 
education program discussing recycling procedures and the disposal of hazardous materials; 
employment or training of personnel dedicated to vehicle processing and recycling; and finally, a 
focus on ensuring that all investments are sustainable for long-term use. 

Abandoned and junk vehicles are a growing problem in Unalaska. Vehicle owners pay the impact 
fee of $100 per year at the time of vehicle registration in Unalaska. The annual revenue is around 
$60,000. That tax was imposed to cover the costs for work at the landfill and barging the vehicle 
off island at the end of its useful life. However, 10 years of registration payments equaling $1,000 
are not sufficient to cover the costs.  

The larger problem though, is the number of vehicles not brought to the landfill. These are either 
abandoned on public/private property or stored on private property that is not zoned for junkyard. 
Junk vehicles blemish the community landscape and, in a few instances, owners deliberately 
circumvented the landfill impact fee by registering vehicles in a different jurisdiction. The State of 
Alaska’s Bureau of Motor Vehicle registration does not require the vehicle owner to register the 
vehicle in the community where it is located. 

The problem is so large that widescale enforcement presents a problem the administration is 
proposing to solve in 2025. The details will be presented to City Council at a future meeting, but 
in general we are preparing for a citywide code enforcement program. We will cite owners of junk 
vehicles, provide towing services and store them at a location prepared appropriately until they 
can be processed and barged off the island. Fines, penalties and fees will depend on the situation. 
The City’s code and fee schedule will be amended appropriately and presented to the City Council 
for review and adoption. 

Successful grant awards from the EPA SWIFR program will be announced in the fall of 2025. The 
administration does not want to wait another year before addressing the junk and abandoned 
vehicle problem. The money involved in this budget amendment will be used to cover the costs 
associated with the towing and preparation work for vehicles. Thus, a total of $477,852.03 is 
proposed for use from the Crab Disaster Relief Funds ($270,726) and Dinh judgment 
($207,126.03). The Dinh judgement represents nearly seven (7) years of work on code 
enforcement specific to the triplex case and it seems appropriate to put that money to work on 
code enforcement throughout the community. The Crab Disaster Relief Funds also represents a 
community-wide impact.  

Alternatives: We could delay the DRIVE program until 2026 and hope the EPA funds the SWIFR 
grant. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

• APIA is providing grant funding for the Senior Exercise program.
• The DRIVE project will be funded in this amendment by the Crab Disaster Funds of

$270,726 and the Dinh Judgement of $207,126.03 for a total of $477,852.03.

Council Packet Page Number 87 



-5-

  

   

 

  

LEGAL:  None

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends  adoption  of Ordinance  2025-01.

PROPOSED MOTION:

• First reading:  I move to  introduce  Ordinance  2025-01  and schedule it for  public hearing
and  second reading on  January  14, 2025.

• Second reading: I move to adopt Ordinance 2025-01.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  I support all the budget amendments and the work they will fund.

ATTACHMENTS:  

Rate Study Request for Qualifications 
NewGen’s Proposal

Council Packet Page Number 88 



City of Unalaska 

Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 

 

 

 

 

Request for Qualifications 

Date: November 20, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Unalaska 

Department of Public Works 

P.O. Box 610 

Unalaska, Alaska 99685 

907-581-1260 

 
CITY OF UNALASKA 

Council Packet Page Number 89 



Table of Contents 
I.  PURPOSE  .................................................................................................................................................. 3 

II. SCOPE ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

III. SCHEDULE ................................................................................................................................................ 5 

IV. SUBMITTAL AND REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................... 5 

V.  EVALUATIONS AND SELECTION PROCESS ................................................................................................ 5 

 

List of Attachments 
 

Attachment A – Consultant Agreement  
Attachment B – Evaluation Matrix 
Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 

Council Packet Page Number 90 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 3 of 15 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES – UTILITY RATE STUDIES FOR ELECTRIC, WATER, WASTEWATER & SOLID WASTE 

  

I. PURPOSE: 
The City of Unalaska Department of Public Utilities is requesting statements of qualifications from qualified firms, 
experienced in performing utility rate studies, to perform comprehensive rate studies for electric, water, wastewater and 
solid waste utilities. The purpose of this RFQ is to evaluate and select a firm that can deliver a comprehensive rate study 
for the City’s electric, water, wastewater and solid waste utilities no later than April 28, 2025. 

The City of Unalaska provides electric, water, wastewater and solid waste service (the “City Utilities”) to a population of 
approximately 4,500 year-round residents, this population grows to 8,000 and up to 12,000 during fishing seasons. 

The City operates a 21 MW power plant, 13 MGD water system, 1.2 MGD wastewater system and processes approximately 
8,500 tons of solid waste. The electric distribution division utilizes approximately 14 miles of 35 kVA circuit, 16 miles of 15 
kVA circuit, 200 transformers, 130 sectionalizing devices to serve its approximate 1,000 service connections. The water 
division utilizes approximately 21 miles of pipe, ranging from 8” – 24”, two enclosed storage tanks (2.5MG, .5MG) to serve 
its 600 customers. The wastewater division utilizes approximately 20 miles of gravity main, 3 miles of pressure main, 10 
lift stations and 370 manholes to serve its 600 customers. The solid waste division operates from a 12,000 square foot 
facility, where solid waste is bailed and moved to the active cell. Additionally, the solid waste division operates a 1.6 MG 
leachate storage tank and processing facility. 

The Department of Public Utilities operates the City Utilities with a $27M proprietary operations and capital budget. 
Increased demand for utility services currently forecast an increase of 14 MW for power production and distribution and 
1MGD of water service. Future capital projects include: $8M gasifier for solid waste management, 2-3 MG water storage 
tank, wind generation development, and 200A – 600A electric distribution circuit upgrades. 

For additional information visit: 

https://www.ci.unalaska.ak.us/publicutilities 

For the Department of Public Utilities’ operating budgets & fee schedule please visit: 

Budget Fiscal Year 2025 | City of Unalaska - International Port of Dutch Harbor 

Schedule of Fees & Charges | City of Unalaska - International Port of Dutch Harbor 

 

II. SCOPE: 
a. Overview 

The City of Unalaska is seeking a firm to conduct a comprehensive utility rate study for the City Utilities . This study will 
include the following by division: 

i. Electric 
1. Analyze current and future cost burdens against existing rate structure. 
2. Evaluate return on equity within the system based on existing rate structure. 
3. Analyze current rate structure with City staff and provide recommendations to fully fund expenditures for 

the next 10 years, including CMMP. 
4. Alternative rate design to include wholesale rates for co-generators. 
5. Present new rate structure to constituents and members of the public. 
6. Present current asset depression to constituents. 
7. Develop policy for rate analysis. 
8. Develop revenue projections. 
9. Develop revenue requirements. 

 

Council Packet Page Number 91 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 4 of 15 

ii. Water & Wastewater 
1. Analyze current and future cost burdens against existing rate structure. 
2. Evaluate return on equity within the system based on existing rate structure. 
3. Analyze current rate structure with City staff and provide recommendations to fully fund expenditures for 

the next 10 years, including CMMP. 
4. Present new rate structure to constituents and members of the public. 
5. Present current asset depression to constituents. 
6. Develop policy for rate analysis. 
7. Develop revenue projections. 
8. Develop revenue requirements. 

 
iii. Solid Waste 

1. Analyze current and future cost burdens against existing rate structure. 
2. Evaluate return on equity within the system based on existing rate structure. 
3. Analyze current rate structure with City staff and provide recommendations to fully fund expenditures for 

the next 10 years, including CMMP. 
4. Present new rate structure to constituents and members of the public. 
5. Present current asset depression to constituents. 
6. Develop policy for rate analysis. 
7. Develop revenue projections. 
8. Develop revenue requirements. 
9. Update closure, post-closure cost liability for FY26-FY31. 

 
b. Technical Specifications 
i. Data Acquisition 

1. After reviewing system information provided by the Department of Public Utilities, the firm will prepare 
a detailed data request for City staff to complete the rate studies. Information may be provided by staff 
through a variety of resources that are not consolidated including: spreadsheets, exported reports and 
financial reports. E-mail correspondence, phone conversations and MS Teams meetings can be scheduled 
to complete this task. 

2. If needed, the consultant will provide examples of reports and other information needed to complete rate 
study.  
 

ii. Rate Structure Analysis and Recommendations 
1. Upon receiving and analyzing data provided by City staff, the consultant will provide analysis of current 

rate structure. Consultant will also work with city staff to provide recommendations of new rate structure 
for the Electric Division, this recommendation should be designed to fully fund all expenditures in the 
division. 

2. Upon receiving and analyzing data provided by City Staff, the consultant will provide rate adjustment 
recommendations for the Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste Division. Recommendations should be 
designed to fully fund all expenditure across all three divisions. 

 
iii. Rate Analysis Policy 

The consultant will develop a draft rate setting policy. This policy must cover all items under “II. SCOPE”. 

iv. Revenue Requirements and Projections 
1. The consultant will prepare revenue requirement analysis for FY26-FY29 that will be based on current 

financial reports available, previous operating budgets, current (FY25) operating budgets and current 5-
year Capital Major Maintenance Plan (CMMP). 

2. The consultant will prepare revenue projections for FY26-FY29 based on implemented billing 
determinants and rates. Projection data shall be provided in excel format to City Staff. 

Council Packet Page Number 92 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 5 of 15 

v. Presentation & Communication 

The consultant will prepare presentations of recommended rate models the City Utilities.  A minimum of four official 
presentations and meetings will be required: 

1. 30 days within final deliver to allow City staff to review recommendations 
2. Additional meetings with staff to review customer input. 
3. First reading of recommended rate adjustments to constituents 
4. Utility proprietary fund management presentation during First Reading 
5. Second reading of recommended rate adjustments to constituents (adoption) 
6. Presentation to public of adopted rate adjustments and structure. 

Presentations can be made in person, or via MS Teams, ZOOM. 

III. SCHEDULE: 
The schedule to complete the rate study from the Notice to Proceed date is approximately 120 days or before April 28, 
2025. All recommendations must be adopted on or prior to the last meeting of the fiscal year, June 24, 2025.  

IV. SUBMITTAL AND REQUIREMENTS: 
Submittals must include the following information: 

 Firm name and contact information, including name of Project Manager, and applicable Consultant, QC and 
support staff and sub-consultants. 

 Introduction of firm and project team. 
 Documentation of firm’s experience and successful projects. 

Sealed submissions clearly marked “Statement of Qualifications: Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for 
Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste” can be submitted no later than Friday, December 20, 2024 2 p.m. local time 
to: 

City of Unalaska 
Office of the City Clerk 

43 Raven Way 
P.O. Box 610 

Unalaska, Alaska 99685-610 
Tel.  907-581-1251 
Fax. 907-581-1417 

 
An electronic copy of the RFQ documents may be obtained from the City of Unalaska website: 
http://www.ci.unalaska.ak.us/rfps, for no charge. 

Questions regarding this RFQ should be directed to: 
 
Erik Hernandez, Acting Department of Utilities, via email to ehernandez@ci.unalaska.ak.us  
or 
Patricia Soule, Finance Director, via email to psoule@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
A pre-submittal conference will be held Monday, December 2, 2024 at 10 a.m. AKST via MS Teams. Please contact Erik 
Hernandez at ehernandez@ci.unalaska.ak.us for an invitation. 
 
Any submissions received after the time and date specified will not be considered. 

V. EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS: 

Council Packet Page Number 93 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 6 of 15 

A review committee under the direction of the City of Unalaska, Department of Public Utilities and Finance, will review all 
submissions based on the criteria below. A contract, which shall take into consideration: 

a. Professional Experience 
 Years in business 
 Staff experience 
 Demonstration of thorough knowledge of financial planning, rate design and cost of service analysis. 

b. Ability to Provide and Meet Scope of Services 
 Submissions should include summary of firm’s approach to complete scope under this RFQ. 

c. Past Performance and References 
 Examples of previous engagements with similar scope of work 
 Past performance with municipal utilities serving more than 1,000 customers and considerable shifting 

loads from industrial customers 
d. Total Cost 

 Itemized summary of scope of the project 
 Total cost for complete scope of the project 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Packet Page Number 94 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 7 of 15 

ATTACHMENT A 
CITY OF UNALASKA 

Department of Public Works & Utilities 
FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES – UTILITY RATE STUDIES FOR ELECTRIC, WATER, WASTEWATER & SOLID WASTE 

CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on ________________, 2024, by and between __________________________ 
(“Contractor”), and the CITY OF UNALASKA (hereinafter called “City” or “Owner”). 
 

WHEREAS, the City issued a request for qualifications for Financial Consulting Services; Utility Rate Study for Electric, 
Water, Wastewater, & Solid (RFQ); 

 
WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal in response to the RFQ (the “Proposal”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Contractor was selected to provide the services described in the RFQ and the Proposal; 

 
NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. Engagement of Contractor 

Contractor agrees to provide professional services in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. A 
written description of the work to be performed and the schedule thereof is set out in the RFQ and the Proposal. 

2. Contractor’s Fee and Payments 

The City agrees to pay Contractor as compensation for the services under this Agreement such sums of money 
as set forth in the Fee Schedule, attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement. 

Contractor shall submit periodic invoices as services are performed. Provided Contractor submits a proper 
invoice, in such form accompanied by such evidence in support thereof as may be reasonably required by the City, the 
City shall make payment within thirty days. 

3. Personnel 

Contractor agrees to furnish all personnel necessary for expeditious and satisfactory performance of this 
Agreement, each to be competent, experienced, and well qualified for the work assigned. No person objected to by the 
City shall be employed by Contractor for work hereunder. 

4. Independent Contractor Status 

In performing under this Agreement, Contractor acts as an independent contractor and shall have responsibility 
for and control over the details and means for performing the services required hereunder. 

5. Indemnification 

Contractor shall defend and save harmless City or any employee, officer, insurer, or elected official thereof from 
and against losses, damages, liabilities, expenses, claims, and demands but only to the extent arising out of any 
negligent act or negligent omission of Contractor while performing under the terms of this contract. 

City shall defend and save harmless Contractor, its employees and officers from and against losses, damages, 
liabilities, expenses, claims and demands but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the City 
while performing under the terms of this contract. 

6. Assignment 

Council Packet Page Number 95 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 8 of 15 

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or any of the monies due or to become due hereunder without the 
prior written consent of City. 

7. Subcontracting 

Contractor may not subcontract its performance under this Agreement without prior written consent of City. 

8. Designation of Representatives 

The Parties agree, for the purposes of this Agreement, the City shall be represented by and may act only through 
the City Manager or such other person as he may designate in writing. Contractor shall advise City in writing of the name 
of its representative in charge of the administration of this Agreement, who shall have authority to act for and bind 
Contractor in connection with this Agreement. 

9. Termination 

Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in whole or in part at any time and for reasonable 
cause, by delivery of ten days written notice, specifying the extent and effective date thereof. After receipt of such 
notice, Contractor shall stop work hereunder to the extent and on the date specified in such notice, and deliver to City 
all designs, computations, drawings, specifications and other material and information prepared or developed 
hereunder. 

In the event of any termination pursuant to this clause, Contractor shall be entitled to be paid as provided 
herein for direct labor hours expended and reimbursable costs incurred prior to the termination and for such direct 
labor hours and reimbursable costs as may be expended or incurred thereafter with City’s approval in concluding the 
work terminated, it being understood that Contractor shall not be entitled to any anticipated profit on services not 
performed. Except as provided in this clause, any such termination shall not alter or affect the rights or obligations of the 
parties under this Agreement. 

10. Ownership and Use of Documents 

The City shall own all designs, computations, drawings, specifications and other material and information 
prepared or developed hereunder 

11. Insurance 

A. The Contractor, at its own expense, shall obtain and maintain in force throughout the life of this 
contract, the insurance coverage and amounts herein specified. Such coverage shall be with an insurance company rated 
“A-:VIII by A.M. Best Company, or a company specifically approved by the City. These policies providing coverage shall 
contain provisions and endorsements that no cancellation or material changes in the policy relative to this Agreement 
shall become effective except upon 30 days prior written notice thereof to the City 

B. The City of Unalaska, its officials, employees, volunteers and agents shall be named as additional insured 
under the insurance coverage so specified and where allowed, with respect to the performance of the work and this 
additional insured status must be endorsed upon all policies where applicable. There shall be no right of subrogation 
against the City or its officials, employees or agents performing work, in connection with the work, and this waiver of 
subrogation shall be endorsed upon the policies. This provision applies regardless of whether or not the City has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the contractor’s insurer. 

C. Prior to commencement of the work, the contractor shall furnish certificates of insurance to the City of 
Unalaska, written on standard Accord forms, evidencing that the insurance policy provisions required herein are in force. 
These certificates of insurance shall be sent to: City of Unalaska: Risk Management: PO Box 610 Unalaska, AK 99685 or 
email to: risk@ci.unalaska.ak.us 

Council Packet Page Number 96 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 9 of 15 

  Acceptance by the City of Unalaska of deficient evidence of insurance does not constitute a waiver of contract 
requirements. 

D. The minimum coverages and limits required are as follows: 

1. Workers’ Compensation insurance in accordance with the statutory coverages required by the 
State of Alaska and Employers Liability insurance with limits not less than the following: 

      Bodily injury by accident $1,000,000 each accident 

      Bodily injury by disease $1,000,000 policy limit 

      Bodily injury by disease $1,000,000 each employee 

and, where applicable, insurance in compliance with any other statutory obligations, whether State or Federal, 
pertaining to the compensation of injured employees assigned to the work. 

2. Commercial General Liability with limits not less than $1,000,000 per Occurrence and 
$2,000,000 Aggregate for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, Premises and Operations Liability, Products and 
Completed Operations Liability, Contractual Liability and Personal Injury Liability.  

3. Commercial Automobile Liability on all owned, non-owned, hired and rented vehicles with limits 
of liability of not less than $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage per each accident or 
loss. 

4. Umbrella/Excess Liability insurance coverage of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
annual aggregate providing coverage in excess of General Liability, Auto Liability, and Employers Liability. 

5. Professional Liability insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 
aggregate, subject to a maximum deductible $25,000 per claim. The City of Unalaska has the right to negotiate increase 
of deductibles subject to acceptable financial information of the policyholder. 

6. If work involves use of aircraft, Aircraft Liability insurance covering all owned and non-owned 
aircraft with a per occurrence limit of not less that $1,000,000. 

7. If work involves use of watercraft, Protection and Indemnity insurance with limits not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. 

E. If Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, the City 
of Unalaska, its officials, employees, volunteers and agents require and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or 
higher limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits 
of insurance and coverage shall be available to the city.  

F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. At the option 
of the City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, 
its officials, employees and volunteers; or the contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the City 
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expense. 

G. All insurance policies as described above are required to be written on an “occurrence”  basis. In the 
event occurrence coverage is not available, the contractor agrees to maintain “claims made” coverage for a minimum of 
two years after project completion. 

H.    For any claims related to this Agreement the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary coverage as 
respects the City, its officials, employees and agents. Any issuance of self-insurance maintained by the City, its officials, 
employees or agents shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Council Packet Page Number 97 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 10 of 15 

I.    The contractor shall furnish the City of Unalaska with certified copies of full policies upon request 

J. If the contractor employs subcontractors to perform any work hereunder, the contractor agrees to 
require such subcontractors to obtain, carry, maintain, and keep in force during the time in which they are engaged in 
performing any work hereunder, policies of insurance which comply with the requirements as set forth in this section 
and to furnish certificates of insurance thereof to the City of Unalaska. This requirement is applicable to subcontractors 
of any tier. 

12. Claims Recovery 

Claims by City resulting from Contractor’s failure to comply with the terms of and specifications of this 
Agreement and/or default hereunder may be recovered by City by withholding the amount of such claims from 
compensation otherwise due Contractor for work performed or to be performed. City shall notify Contractor of any such 
failure, default or damage therefrom as soon as practicable, but no later than 10 days after discovery of such event by 
written notice. Nothing provided herein shall be deemed as constituting an exclusive remedy on behalf of City, nor a 
waiver of any other rights hereunder at law or in equity. Design changes required as a result of failure to comply with 
the applicable standard of care shall be performed by the Contractor without additional compensation. 

13. Performance Standard 

Services performed under this Agreement will be performed with reasonable care or the ordinary skill of the 
profession practicing in the same or similar location and under similar circumstances and shall comply with all applicable 
codes and industry standards in the State of Alaska. 

14. Compliance with Applicable Laws 

Contractor shall in the performance of this Agreement comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, orders, rules, and regulations applicable to its performance hereunder, including without limitation, all such 
legal provisions pertaining to social security, income tax withholding, medical aid, industrial insurance, workers’ 
compensation, and other employee benefit laws. Contractor also agrees to comply with all contract provisions 
pertaining to grant or other funding assistance which City may choose to utilize to perform work under this Agreement. 
The Contractor and all subcontractors must comply with state laws related to local hire and prevailing wages. 

15. Records and Audit 

Contractor agrees to maintain sufficient and accurate records and books of account, including detailed time 
records, showing all direct labor hours expended and all reimbursable costs incurred and the same shall be subject to 
inspection and audit by City at all reasonable times. All such records and books of account pertaining to any work 
performed hereunder shall be retained for a period of not less than six years from the date of completion of services 
hereunder. 

16. Reporting of Progress and Inspection 

Contractor agrees to keep City informed as to progress of the work under this Agreement by providing monthly 
written progress reports, and shall permit City to have reasonable access to the work performed or being performed, for 
the purpose of any inspection City may desire to undertake. 

17. Nondiscrimination 

Contractor will not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, marital status, or mental or physical handicap. The Contractor shall 
state, in all solicitations for employees to work on contract jobs, that all qualified applicants will receive consideration 
for employment without unlawful discrimination based upon race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, 
marital status, or mental or physical handicap. 

Council Packet Page Number 98 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 11 of 15 

18. Form of City Approval 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, City’s requests and approvals, and Contractor’s cost estimates 
and descriptions of work to be performed, may be made orally where necessary, provided that the oral communication 
is confirmed immediately thereafter in writing. 

19. Duration of Agreement 

This agreement is effective until completion of the services unless earlier terminated. 

 

20. Inspections by City 

The City has the right, but not the duty, to inspect, in the manner and at reasonable times it considers 
appropriate during the period of this Agreement, all facilities and activities of the Contractor as may be engaged in the 
performance of this Agreement. 

21. Notices 

Any official notice that either party hereto desires to give the other shall be delivered through the United States 
mail by certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage thereon fully prepaid and addressed as follows: 

 To City:      To Contractor: 

 City Manager       
 City of Unalaska      
 Box 610       
 Unalaska, Alaska 99685     

 The addresses specified may be changed by either party by giving written notice thereof to the other party 
pursuant to this paragraph. 

22. Venue/Applicable Law 

The venue of any legal action between the parties arising as a result of this Agreement shall be laid in the Third 
Judicial District of the Superior Court of the State of Alaska and this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Alaska. 

23. Attorney’s Fees 

In the event either party institutes any suit or action to enforce its right hereunder, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in such suit or action and on any appeal 
therefrom. 

24. Waiver 

No failure on the part of City to enforce any covenant or provisions herein contained, nor any waiver of any right 
hereunder by City, unless in writing and signed by the parties sought to be bound, shall discharge or invalidate such 
covenants or provisions or affect the right of City to enforce the same or any other provision in the event of any 
subsequent breach or default. 

25. Binding Effect 

The terms, conditions and covenants contained in this Agreement shall apply to, inure to the benefit of, and 
bind the parties and their respective successors. 

Council Packet Page Number 99 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 12 of 15 

26. Entire Agreement/Modification 

 This agreement, including the RFQ, Proposal, and Fee Schedule, constitutes the entire Agreement between the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and all prior negotiations and understandings are superseded and 
replaced by this Agreement and shall be of no further force and effect. No modification of this Agreement shall be of any 
force or effect unless reduced to writing, signed by both parties and expressly made a part of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed or caused to be executed by their duly authorized 
officials, this Agreement in duplicate on the respective date indicated below. 

 
CONTRACTOR     CITY OF UNALASKA: 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
       Bil Homka, City Manager 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Packet Page Number 100 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 13 of 15 

ATTACHMENT B 
CITY OF UNALASKA 

Department of Public Works & Utilities 
FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES – UTILITY RATE STUDIES FOR ELECTRIC, WATER, WASTEWATER & SOLID WASTE 

EVALUATION MATRIX 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Packet Page Number 101 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 14 of 15 

ATTACHMENT C 
CITY OF UNALASKA 

Department of Public Works & Utilities 
FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES – UTILITY RATE STUDIES FOR ELECTRIC, WATER, WASTEWATER & SOLID WASTE 

 
Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, at its own expense, insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with contracted services provided by 
Contractor, its employees, agents or representatives. 

A.  Minimum Scope and Limit of Insurance: coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability shall have limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 Aggregate, 
including coverage for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, Premises and Operations Liability, Products and Completed 
Operations Liability, Contractual Liability, and Personal Injury Liability. 

2. Commercial Automobile Liability on all owned, hired, non-hired and rented vehicles of not less than $1,000,000 
combined single limit per accident/occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 

4. Workers’ Compensation insurance in accordance with the statutory coverages required by the State of Alaska, 
and Employers Liability insurance with limits not less than the following: 

                                             Bodily Injury by accident: $1,000,000 per accident 

                                             Bodily Injury by disease $1,000,000 policy limit 

                                             Bodily injury by disease $1,000,000 each employee 

5.         Professional Liability insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim and $1,000,000 
aggregate, subject to a maximum deductible $10,000 per claim. The City of Unalaska has the right to negotiate increase 
of deductibles subject to acceptable financial information of the policyholder. 

If Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, the City of Unalaska, its 
officials, employees, volunteers or agents (collectively, “the City”), shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the 
higher limits maintained by the Contractor.  Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits 
of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City.  

6. Other Insurance may be required depending upon final scope of work. 

All insurance policies as described above are required to be written on an “occurrence” basis. In the event occurrence 
coverage is not available, the Engineer agrees to maintain “claims made” coverage for a minimum of three years after 
project completion. 

B. Additional Insurance Provisions  

1. Acceptability of Insurers and Cancellation Notification: Contractor shall place coverage with insurance companies 
rated A-:VIII by A.M. Best Company, or companies specifically approved by the City. These policies providing coverage 
shall contain provisions and endorsements stating that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the City of Unalaska. 

2. Additional insureds: The City shall be covered as additional insured as respects liability arising out of contracted 
services performed by the Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the City and this additional insured status must be endorsed upon the Commercial General Liability policy and 
Commercial Auto Liability Policy and any other policy where so allowed. This provision applies regardless of whether or 
not the City has received an additional insured endorsement from the insurer.  

Council Packet Page Number 102 



 

Request for Qualifications 
Financial Consulting Services – Utility Rate Studies for Electric, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
Page 15 of 15 

3. Primary Coverage: For any claims related to contracted services performed by the Contractor, Contractor’s 
insurance coverage shall be primary coverage as respects the City. Any issuance of self-insurance maintained by the City 
shall be excess of Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  

4. Waiver of Subrogation: There shall be no right of subrogation against the City for losses arising out of contracted 
services provided by Contractor by any insurer of Contractor or Subcontractors and this waiver of subrogation shall be 
endorsed upon the Commercial General Liability, Commercial Auto, and Workers’ Compensation policies, and any other 
polices where so allowed. This provision applies regardless of whether or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement from the insurer. 

5. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured retentions shall be declared to and 
approved by the City.  At the option of the City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects the City, or Contractor shall be required to procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and 
related investigations, claim administration and defense expense. 

6. Verification of Coverage: Before service begins Contractor shall furnish the City with Certificates of Insurance on 
standard Accord forms evidencing required insurance coverage, including all required amendatory endorsements. Failure 
to obtain the required certificates and endorsements prior to beginning service shall not waive Contractor’s obligation to 
provide them and shall not affect the coverage provided to the City. Acceptance of Certificates of Insurance with deficient 
or erroneous coverage does not absolve Contractor from carrying and maintaining the required coverage. 

Certificates of Insurance shall be prepared and emailed to: 

                                      Certificate Holder:  City of Unalaska, Dept. of Public Utilities 

P.O. Box 610, Unalaska 

Unalaska, AK 99685 

            Email to:   ehernandez@ci.unalaska.ak.us  and risk@ci.unalaska.ak.us  

The City reserves the right to request complete, certified copies of full insurance policies, including endorsements. 

7. Sub-Contractors Coverage: If the Contractor employs Sub-Contractors to perform any work hereunder, the 
Contractor agrees to require such Sub-Contractors to obtain, carry, maintain, and keep in force during the time in which 
they are engaged in performing any work or service hereunder, policies of insurance which comply with all requirements. 
This requirement is applicable to Sub-Contractors of any tier.  It is further agreed, that upon request by the City, the 
Contractor will provide copies of any and all Sub-Contractor certificates of insurance and endorsements for review of 
compliance. 

8. Maintenance of Coverage: Failure by the Contractor to maintain the required insurance coverage or to comply 
with the above, may, at the option of the City, be deemed defective work and remedied in accordance with the service 
contract. 

9. Notification of Change in Requirements: The City reserves the right to modify these insurance requirements, 
including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances, after 30 days 
prior written notification to Contractor. 

 

 
 

Council Packet Page Number 103 



Weight % MV KD EH Score 4
Score     

5
Average 

Score

Total Points+ 
(numerical 

score x 
weight)

Professional Qualifications 20 15 20 15 16.6 1.00
Experiences and References 20 15 20 12 15.6 0.94
Ability to Provide and Meet Scope of Services 40 40 38 35 38.6 4.52
Price 20 20 20 20 20 1.20
Total Weight Score 100 90 98 82 90 7.66

Weight % MV KD EH Score 4
Score     

5
Average 

Score

Total Points+ 
(numerical 

score x 
weight)

Professional Qualifications 20 20 20 20 20 1.20
Experiences and References 20 20 20 20 20 1.20
Ability to Provide and Meet Scope of Services 40 35 35 38 36 4.32
Price 20 15 18 15 16 0.96
Total Weight Score 100 90 93 93 92 7.68

Weight %
Score     

1
Score     

2
Score     

3
Score 4

Score     
5

Average 
Score

Total Points+ 
(numerical 

score x 
weight)

Professional Qualifications 20
Experiences and References 20
Ability to Provide and Meet Scope of Services 40
Price 20
Total Weight Score 100

Utility Accounting & Rate Specialists, LLC Evaluation Matrix

NewGen Strategies & Solutions Evaluation Matrix

Consultant C Evaluation Matrix - NO THIRD BID

Council Packet Page Number 104 



Council Packet Page Number 105 



Council Packet Page Number 106 



Council Packet Page Number 107 



Council Packet Page Number 108 



Council Packet Page Number 109 



Council Packet Page Number 110 



Council Packet Page Number 111 



Council Packet Page Number 112 



Council Packet Page Number 113 



Council Packet Page Number 114 



Council Packet Page Number 115 



Council Packet Page Number 116 



Council Packet Page Number 117 



Council Packet Page Number 118 



Council Packet Page Number 119 



Council Packet Page Number 120 



Council Packet Page Number 121 



Council Packet Page Number 122 



Council Packet Page Number 123 



Council Packet Page Number 124 



Council Packet Page Number 125 



Council Packet Page Number 126 



Council Packet Page Number 127 



Council Packet Page Number 128 



Council Packet Page Number 129 



Council Packet Page Number 130 



Council Packet Page Number 131 



Council Packet Page Number 132 



Council Packet Page Number 133 



Council Packet Page Number 134 



Council Packet Page Number 135 



Council Packet Page Number 136 



Council Packet Page Number 137 



Council Packet Page Number 138 



Council Packet Page Number 139 



Council Packet Page Number 140 



Council Packet Page Number 141 



Council Packet Page Number 142 



Council Packet Page Number 143 



Council Packet Page Number 144 



Council Packet Page Number 145 



Council Packet Page Number 146 



Council Packet Page Number 147 



Council Packet Page Number 148 



Council Packet Page Number 149 



Council Packet Page Number 150 



Council Packet Page Number 151 



Council Packet Page Number 152 



Council Packet Page Number 153 



Council Packet Page Number 154 



Council Packet Page Number 155 



Council Packet Page Number 156 



Council Packet Page Number 157 



Council Packet Page Number 158 



Council Packet Page Number 159 



Council Packet Page Number 160 



Council Packet Page Number 161 



Council Packet Page Number 162 



Council Packet Page Number 163 



Council Packet Page Number 164 



Council Packet Page Number 165 



Council Packet Page Number 166 



Council Packet Page Number 167 



Council Packet Page Number 168 



Council Packet Page Number 169 



Council Packet Page Number 170 



Council Packet Page Number 171 



Council Packet Page Number 172 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Michelle Price, Executive Assistant 1 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14, 2025  
Re: NPFMC Meetings 
 
 
The Council will be holding a special Council meeting in February exclusively focused on two 
issues: a second review of the chum salmon bycatch analysis and appendices (the Council last 
reviewed this analysis in April 2024) and 2025 harvest specifications for Cook Inlet salmon. 
The meeting will be held in person at the Egan Center from February 3 through 11, 2025. 
 
The written public comment period for February opened on December 20, 2024, and closes 
at noon on Friday, January 31, 2025. Signups for oral public testimony during the meeting will 
open once the meetings begin. The meeting is also available on YouTube channel or Zoom. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The estimated travel costs per person are: 

Air Fare 1,150.00$   
Hotel (1) 1,323.00$   
Hotel (2) -$            
Vehicle Rental -$            
Taxi, Shuttle, Other 50.00$        
Per Diem 1,160.00$   
Registration Fees -$            
Total 3,683.00$    

This travel is planned and was included in the Council’s FY25 travel budget. 

The current balance in the Council’s travel budget (0102-0152-55903) is $83,231.28, therefore 
there are sufficient funds to cover travel for the Mayor and up to three City Council Members.  

COUNCIL’S TRAVEL POLICY: Council’s Travel Policy states that no more than three Council 
Members may travel to the same meeting or conference; that travel be conducted in the most 
direct and economic manner possible to accomplish City business; and Council will discuss the 
travel, identify the Council Members to travel, and approve the travel by motion at least twenty-
one days before the trip. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve travel for Mayor Tutiakoff and up to three City Council 
Members to attend the NPFMC meetings. 

 

Council Packet Page Number 173 

https://meetings.npfmc.org/CommentReview/DownloadFile?p=1224cfc2-d9db-4e2a-ab63-61c416debd13.pdf&fileName=C2%20Bering%20Sea%20Chum%20Salmon%20Bycatch%20Management%20Analysis.pdf
https://meetings.npfmc.org/CommentReview/DownloadFile?p=860d8be1-2424-4413-98b2-85c3316bebfb.pdf&fileName=C2%20Appendices%20to%20Chum%20Salmon%20Analysis.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCokqSfpL9TzRDX-5A6idcgw/videos


 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Council Packet Page Number 174 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Council Packet Page Number 175 



 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Michelle Price, Executive Assistant 1 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14, 2025  
Re: AML Winter Conference 
 
 
The Alaska Municipal League organizes its Winter Legislative Conference every year in Juneau 
during the legislative session. The 2025 conference will be held at Centennial Hall in Juneau 
from February 18 to 20. 
  
Legislative Agenda Focus:  

• Hear from State agency officials 
• Learn more about current legislation and activities 
• Visit with legislators and legislative staff 
• Address priority issues 
• Contribute to AML’s legislative strategy 

 
The goals of the meeting are to: 

• Advance AML’s legislative priorities 
• Learn more about specific topics relevant to municipal government 
• Connect AML members with legislators and administration officials 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The estimated travel costs per person are: 

Air Fare 1,775.00$   
Hotel (1) 1,156.00$   
Hotel (2) 189.00$      
Vehicle Rental -$            
Taxi, Shuttle, Other 250.00$      
Per Diem 590.00$      
Registration Fees 250.00$      
Total 4,210.00$    

This travel is planned and was included in the Council’s FY25 travel budget. 

The current balance in the Council’s travel budget (0102-0152-55903) is $83,231.28, therefore 
there are sufficient funds to cover travel for the Mayor and up to three City Council Members.  

COUNCIL’S TRAVEL POLICY: Council’s Travel Policy states that no more than three Council 
Members may travel to the same meeting or conference; that travel be conducted in the most 
direct and economic manner possible to accomplish City business; and Council will discuss the 
travel, identify the Council Members to travel, and approve the travel by motion at least twenty-
one days before the trip. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve travel for Mayor Tutiakoff and up to three City Council 
Members to attend the AML Winter Conference. 

Council Packet Page Number 176 



 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Michelle Price, Executive Assistant 1 
Through: William Homka, City Manager 
Date:  January 14, 2025  
Re: 2025 SWAMC Economic Summit & Membership Meeting 
 
 
The SWAMC Economic Summit and membership meetings will be on March 6 and 7, 2025, at 
the Hotel Captain Cook in Anchorage. This is an outlet for networking opportunities and 
presentations relevant to our Southwest Communities.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The estimated travel costs per person are: 

Air Fare 1,150.00$   
Hotel (1) 756.00$      
Hotel (2) -$            
Vehicle Rental -$            
Taxi, Shuttle, Other 50.00$        
Per Diem 580.00$      
Registration Fees 300.00$      
Total 2,836.00$    

This travel is planned [or was not planned] and was [or was not] included in the Council’s FY25 
travel budget. 

The current balance in the Council’s travel budget (0102-0152-55903) is $83,231.28, therefore 
there are sufficient funds to cover travel for the Mayor and up to three City Council Members.  

COUNCIL’S TRAVEL POLICY: Council’s Travel Policy states that no more than three Council 
Members may travel to the same meeting or conference; that travel be conducted in the most 
direct and economic manner possible to accomplish City business; and Council will discuss the 
travel, identify the Council Members to travel, and approve the travel by motion at least twenty-
one days before the trip. 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve travel for Mayor Tutiakoff and up to three City Council 
Members to attend the SWAMC Annual Conference. 

 

 

Council Packet Page Number 177 


	01 Agenda 2025 01 14
	02 Draft Minutes 2024 11 26
	03 Draft Minutes 2025 01 03
	04 City Manager Report 2025 01 14
	05 YTD Budget Report (through 11.30.24) Option 1
	06 Resolution 2025-02 Shared Fisheries Tax
	Memo Shared Fisheries Business Tax Method
	Resolution Shared Fisheries Business Tax Method
	1. Letter from DCRA
	3. FY25 Shared Fisheries Long Form App
	2. SFBT Projected FY25 Allocation

	07 Resolution 2025-03 Property Tax Dates
	Resolution FY26 Property Tax Dates
	Memo

	08 Resolution 2025-04 CMMP Priority Rankings
	Resolution 2025-04 CMMP Priorities FY26-35
	FY26 Council Memo for Process Guide - Priority weights
	FY26 Council  Ranking Priorities

	09 Resolution 2025-05 SHSP Award
	Surveillance Cameras CC Resolution
	Surveillance Cameras Memorandum
	24 SHSP City of Unalaska - Letter
	24 SHSP City of Unalaska - Original Award

	10 Resolution 2025-06 Taxi Cab Rates for 2025
	Taxi Rates Resolution
	Taxi Rates Memo
	Letter to Taxi Cab Permit Holders for 2025

	11 Ordinance 2024-15 Allowing APV use on roads
	Ordinance 2024-15 Allowing APV Use showing amendments bh
	Staff Memo Ordinance 2024-15 updated for Nov. 26 bh

	12 Ordinance 2024-16 Update Wage Scale for COLA
	2024-16 Ordinance bh
	2024-16 Staff Memo bh

	13 Ordinance 2024-17 Extended food service hours at bars
	Ordinance 2024-17 expanding food hours at licensed premises bh
	Ordinance 2024-17 staff memo bh
	Agenda Item Request

	14 Ordinance 2025-01 BA #1
	2025-01 1
	BA 1 FY25 - revised P1
	BA 1 FY25 - revised p3

	2025-01 2
	04 Ordinance 2025-01 BA #1 FY25
	04 Ordinance 2025-01 BA #1 FY25
	Staff Memo - Budget Amendment 2025-01 amended
	Utility Rate Study RFQ
	Utility Rate Study Matrix Scoring
	NewGen Strategies and Solutions Bid




	15 Travel Memos
	Memo to Council - NPFMC Meeting Feb 2025
	Memo to Council - Winter Conference 2025
	Memo To Council-SWAMC


	Mailing Address: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Contact Person: 
	Title: 
	Phone Number: 
	Email Address: 
	2 Total significant effect municipal expenditure made necessary during 2023 by the fisheries business activity listed in 1: 
	3 Municipal expenditure is actual determined necessary Every municipal expenditure marked determined necessary must be supported by a resolution: 
	actual: Off
	determined necessary: Off
	4 Describe how the municipal expenditure figure listed under Part 2 was determined: 
	5 Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality yes no If yes describe how the fisheries businessrelated part of the overall fiscal impact was determined: 
	5 Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality: Off
	6 Describe the documentation that supports the municipality  s claim of this significant effect this documentation must be readily available to the department upon request: 
	2 Total significant effect municipal expenditure made necessary during 2021 by the fisheries business activity listed in 1: 
	3 Municipal expenditure is actual determined necessary Every municipal expenditure marked determined necessary must be supported by a resolution_2: 
	actual_2: Off
	determined necessary_2: Off
	4 Describe how the municipal expenditure figure listed under Part 2 was determined_2: 
	5 Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality yes no If yes describe how the fisheries businessrelated part of the overall fiscal impact was determined_2: 
	5 Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality_2: Off
	6 Describe the documentation that supports the municipality  s claim of this significant effect this documentation must be readily available to the department upon request_2: 
	2 Total significant effect municipal expenditure made necessary during 2023 by the fisheries business activity listed in 1_2: 
	3 Municipal expenditure is actual determined necessary Every municipal expenditure marked determined necessary must be supported by a resolution_3: 
	actual_3: Off
	determined necessary_3: Off
	4 Describe how the municipal expenditure figure listed under Part 2 was determined_3: 
	5 Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality yes no If yes describe how the fisheries businessrelated part of the overall fiscal impact was determined_3: 
	5 Is the fisheries business activity part of a larger fiscal impact on the municipality_3: Off
	6 Describe the documentation that supports the municipality  s claim of this significant effect this documentation must be readily available to the department upon request_3: 
	Mailing Address_2: PO Box 610
	1_2: Unalaska, AK 99685
	2_2: 
	Contact Person_2: Estkarlen P. Magdaong, CMC
	Title_2: City Clerk
	Email Address_2: emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us
	Phone Number_2: (907) 581-1251
	FMA: [2]
	FMAAREA: Aleutians Islands Area
	Total  of Significant Effects Claimed: 
	Total  of Significant Effects Claimed_2: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Governing Body: 
	Month: 
	Day: 
	Year: 
	Text17: 
	Name of Municipality: City of Unalaska


